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1 DEPENDE TA UDITOR 'S REPORT 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Basic Energy Corporation and Subsidiaries 
7th Floor, Basic Petroleum Building 
C. Palanca Jr. Street, Legaspi Village 
Makati City 

Opinion 

Tel (632) 891 0307 
Fax (632) 819 0872 
eycom/p11 

BOA/PRC Reg No 000 t 
October~ 2018 valid unlll August 24, 2021 

SEC Accreditation No 0012-FR-5 (Group A) 
November 6. 2018. valid until November S 2021 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Basic Energy Corporation and its subsidiaries 
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31 , 2018 
and 2017, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

ln our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects. 
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31 , 2018 and 201 7, and its consolidated 
financial perfonnance and its consolidated cash flows for e.ach of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 201 8 in accordance with Phi lippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of 1he Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) 
together with the ethical ~uirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in fanning our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our 
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statemerus section of our report, including in relation to this maner. 

Accordingly, our audit included the perfonnance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of 
the risks of material m1ssr.atement of the consolidated fi nancial statements. The results of our audit 
procedures including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our 
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
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Accounting for Investments in Associates 
On Jul) 2, 20 J 8, the Group acquired interests in Vintage EPC Co. Ltd. (VEPC) and VTE International 
Construction Co. Ltd. (VrNTER) for a total consideration of P145.05 million. The Group has detennined 
that it exercises significant influence over VEPC end VINTER, hence, accounts for these investments as 
associates using the equity method . As of December 31 , 2018, the carrying value of these investments in 
associates amounted to fl2 I 7.14 million, while the equity in net losses of these associates for the period 
from July 2, 2018 to December 31, 2018 amounted to PS .08 million. We consider the accounting for th is 
acquisition as a key audit mat1er due to the transaction 's financial significance to the Group and the 
significant management judgment involved in the determination of the existence of significant influence 
The equity accounting for these investments was considered a maner of most significance to our audit due 
to the manual nature of the calculations supporting equity accounting. 

The relevant disclosures are presented in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Audit response 

We obtained an understanding 9f the transaction through discussions with management and our review of 
the Share Purchase Agreement. We also reviewed management's accounting for the business acquisition, 
including the purchase price allocation, and the assessment of significant influence in accordance with 
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 28, !nvesrments in A.ssociares and Joint Ventures. We involved 
our internal specialist in the review of the methodology and assumptions used in the purchase price 
allocation. We evaluated management's assessment of the acquisition date and performed procedures to 
check the results of operations commencing from the acquisition date. We also evaluated the presentation 
and the disclosure of the transaction in the consolidated financial statements. 

We obtained an understanding of the Group's process in recognizing its equiJY in net losses of its 
associates, including the understanding of the associates' business transactions. We recalculated the 
Group's equity in net losses of associates based on the associates' audited financial statements. In 
addition, our audit procedures included, among others, coordinating and instructing the statutory auditors 
of the associates to perform an audit on the relevant financial infonnation of VEPC and VINTER for the 
purpose of the Group's consolidated financial statemenrs. We considered the risk assessment, audit 
strategy of the statutory auditors, as well as any significant developments about the associates. We 
further evaluated management' s considerations regarding the impainnent indicators of the investments in 
associates by reviewing the associates' results of operations as well as the associates' ability to declare 
dividends. 

Valuation of Investment Properties at Fair Value 
The Group accounts for its investment properties, which consist of parcels of lend, using the fair value 
model. The Group engaged an appraiser in 2018 to estimate the fair values of the investment properties 
as et December 31, 2018. The determination of the fair values of these investment properties involves 
significant management judgment and consideration of various inputs to the estimation. The valuation 
also requires the assistance of professionally qualified external appraiser whose calculations also depend 
on certain assumptions such as sales and listing of comparable properties registered within the vicinity 
and adjustments to sales price based on intemaJ and external factors. Furthermore, the investment 
properties represented 21% of the consolidated total assets as at December 31, 2018. Accordingly, we 
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter. 

The Group's disclosures about investment properties are presented in Note 12 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

1111111~~ UIDl ~I II H 
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Audit response 

We considered the competence, objectivity, capabilities of the external appraiser given its qualifications, 
experience and reporting responsibilities. We involved our internal specialist in the review of the 
methodology and assumptions used in the valuation of the investment propert ies. We assessed the 
methodology adopted by referencing to common valuation models, and evaluated key inputs used in the 
valuation, specifically size, characteristics of lot, location and quality as well as listings of comparable 
properties by reference to historical data and comparable properties. We inquired from the external 
appraiser the basis of adjustments made to the sales price. We also reviewed the disclosures relating 10 

investment properties. 

Recoverabil ity of Deferred Exploration Costs 
Under PFRS 6, Exploratitmfor and Evaluation of Mineral Resources, the Group's deferred exploration 
coses shall be assessed for impainnent when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amounts 
exceed the recoverable amounts. The ability of the Group to recover its deferred exploration costs 
depends on the success of exploration for and evaluation of geothennal and other renewable resources 1n 
the specific area. Deferred exploration costs amounted to Pl 23 .04 million as at December 31 , 2018, 
which pertains to the Group's participating interests in geothennal and other renewable resources service 
contracts. The Group recognized additional allowance for impairment of deferred exploration costs 
amounting to P2.98 million in 2018. We considered this as a key audit matter in view of the material it) 
of this account and the significant management judgment required when performing an impairment 
assessment. 

Information about the Group's deferred exploration costs are presented in Note 13 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Audit response 

We obtained management 's assessment on whether there is any indication that deferred exploration costs 
may be impaired. We obtained and reviewed the summary of the status of each exploration project as at 
December 31, 2018, as certified by tho Group's drilling and logistics manager, and compared it with the 
disclosures submitted to the regulatory agency. We also inspected service contracts and the relevant joint 
operations agreement for each of the exploration projects to determine that the period for which the 
Group has the right to explore in the specific area has not expired or is nol expiring in the near future. We 
also read the minutes of the meetings of the Group's Board of Directors for the discussion of management 
plans and significant developments on the service contracts or of any concession areas that are expected 
to be abandoned or any exploration activities that are planned to be discontinued in those areas. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other infonnation comprises the information 
included in the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive lnfonnation Statement), SEC Form I 7-A and Annual Report 
for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 20-JS, SEC Form I 7-A and Annual Report for the year ended 
December 31 , 2018 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

llH8HDllll ~ ~ H 



-
SGV 
Butldlnq a better 
WOf'klnQ WOl"kf 

• 4 -

In connection wi th our audilS of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibi lity is to read the 
other infonnation identified above when it becomes avai lable and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged wi th Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management detennines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Jn preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Missl1ltements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
bas is of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of express ing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on t.he audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group' s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty ex ists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor' s 
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report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures arc 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 10 

the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Group 10 cease 
lo continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in.a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemeni that we have complied with relevant 
eth ical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is 
Leovina Mac V. Chu. 

SYClP GORRES VELA YO & CO. 

Leovina Mae V. Chu 
Penner 
CPA Certificate No. 99910 

EC Accreditation No. 1712-A (Group A), 
October I 8, 2018, valid unril October 17, 202 I 

Tax Identification No. 209-316-911 
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-96-20 I 8, 

February 2, 20 18, valid until February 1, 202 I 
PTR No. 7332629, January 3, 2019, Makati City 

March 28, 20 I 9 
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A ET 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6) 
Receivables (Notes 7 and 12) 
Refundable deposits (Note 8) 
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 9) 
Total C urrent Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note I 0) 
Avai lable-for-sale (AFS) financial assets (Note I 0) 
Investments in associates (Note 11 ) 
Investment properties (Note 12) 
Deferred exploration costs (Note I 3) 
Property and equipment (Note 14) 

At revalued amount 
At cost 

Other noncurrent assets 
Total Noncurrent Assets 

T OT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUrTY 

Current LiabilHies 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 15) 
Loan payable (Note I 6) 
Dividends payable 
Income taX payable 
Advances from stockholder (Note 19) 
Tobll C urrent LiabiUties 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Deferred income tax liabilities - net (Note 22) 
Accrued retirement benefits (Note 21 ) 
Total Noocurrent Liabilitie5 
Tot~ ! Liabilities 

(Forward) 

ICTOt 
17 

P42,093,952 P75,02'9,3 84 
127,372,857 2,687,022 

16,183,711 171,429,108 
12,888,673 11 ,864,02 l 

198,539,193 261,009,535 

44,336,517 
46,051 ,128 

217 ,136,156 
160,879,000 27 5,3 80,505 
123,042,519 l l 4,658,256 

23,302,327 25,593 ,527 
17,730,064 20,479,445 
3,372,320 9,080,247 

589,798,903 491 ,243 ,108 

P788,338i096 P.7 52,252,643 

~.994,164 P6,979,960 
50,000,000 50,000,000 

888,714 888,7 14 
216,908 11,800 

6,670,782 
60,099,786 64 551 ,256 

15,006,350 12,099,296 
7,867,346 3,059, 130 

22,873,696 15,158,426 
82,973,482 79,709,682 
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Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company 
Common stock (Note 17) 
Additional paid-in capital (Note 17) 
Equity reserve on acquisition of non-controlling interest (Note 17) 
Other comprehensive income: 

Revaluation increment in office condominium (Note 14) 
Net unrealized gains on changes in fair value of financial assets 

at FVOCJ and AFS financial assets (Note I 0) 
Remeasurement gains on accrued reti rement 

benefits (Note 21) · 
Cumulative translation adjustment (CT A) 
Share in cumulative translation adjustments of 

associates (Note 11) 
Retained earnings (deficit) 
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company 
Equity Attributable to Non-.:ontrolling Interests (Note 17) 

Treasury stock · at cost (Note I 7) 
Total Equity 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Su accompanyiflg Norn ro Conso/lda11tl Fwmclal Stat«ttt411U 

December 3 1 
2018 201 7 

fl703,848, l 78 P677, 125, I 78 
42,021,503 35,617,951 

(53,945,929) (53 ,945,929 ) 

15,747,863 17.296.833 

1,183,379 2,897,990 

1,751 ,984 2, 163,118 
(4,374,615) (4,423 ,295) 

27,544,449 
(J 5,810,752) 7,761,901 

717 ,966,060 684,493,747 
(9tJ61 ,446) (8, 7 I 0,786) 

708,604,614 675,782,961 
(3,240,000) (3,240,000) 

70SJ64,614 672,542,961 

P788,338,096 P752,252,643 
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Years Ended December 31 
2018 2017 2016 

I COME 
excess in net assets acquired over cost of associate (Note I I) P24,J 84 ,059 P- p 

Fair value adjusrment on investment propenies (Note 12) 21 ,394,000 71,955,696 
Realized foreign exchange gains · net 7,589,474 144,1 86 24.243 
Management fee (Note 19) 2,967,471 
Interest income (Note 18) 2,071,143 3,292,064 4,633,256 
Unrealized foreign exchange gains - net 1,488,509 16,414,280 
Reversal of allowance for impairment on receivables (Note 7) 590,941 
Dividend income (Note I 0) 1,280 3,625,953 4,820,629 
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets (Note I 0) 1,680,256 
Gain on sale ofErOEerfY and eguiEment 11611 

60 286 877 8 742 459 97849715 

EXPENSES (CHARGES) 
General and administrative expenses (Note 20) 56,423,495 55,655,93 I 51,954,997 
Loss on sale of investment properties (Note 12) 10,728,788 
Share in net loss of associates (Note I I) 5,077,498 
Goodwill impairment loss 3,757,602 
Interest expense (Note 16) 3,415,799 444,792 
Provision for impairment of deferred explonstion costs 

(Note 13) 2,946,624 166,713,571 
Unrealized forei&!! exchange loss - net 113751008 

82,3491806 57,475,73 1 21 8,668,568 

LO S BEFORE INCOME TAX 22,0621929 48,7331272 1201818,853 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 22) 
Final 409,192 648,738 922,634 
Current 216,908 11,800 7,424 
Deferred 310832254 81850.560 2.111.401 

3,709,354 9,511,098 3,641,459 

NET LOSS P25,772,l83 P58,244,370 Pl24 ,460,312 

NET LOSS A ITRIBUTABLE TO: 
Equity holders of the Parent Company PlS,121,623 P58,104,275 P75,648,092 
Non-controlling interests (Note 17} 6501660 1401095 481812.220 

Pl5, 772,283 P58,244,370 Pl24,460,312 

LOSS PER SHARE (Note 23) 
Basic/Diluted P0.009 P0.022 P0.030 

S•t accompanymg Notes ta Conro/ldattd Flnanctol Stottmtnts. 
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDJARJES 
CO SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOM E 

Years Ended December J I 

2018 2017 2016 

NET LOSS P25,772,28J P58,244 ,3 70 Pl24,460,31 2 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to 

profit or loss in subsequent periods: 
Unrealized loss on changes in fair value of: 

Financial assets at FVOCI (Note I 0) (2,21 4,611) 
AFS financial assets (Note I 0) (2,740,758) 111,396 

Share in cumulative translation adjustments of 
associates (Note 11) 27,544,449 

Movement in cumulative translation adjustments 481680 974.805 {4.693.215} 
252781518 {I 17651953} {4z58l1819} 

Other comprehensive income (loss) not to be reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 
Remeasurement gain (Joss) on retirement benefits 

liability (Note 2 I) (587,334) 9,805,648 ( 194,960) 
Income tax effect 1761200 (2.9411694) 58.488 

{4111134} 61863.954 ( 136.472} 
Unrealized gain on changes in fair value of financial 

assets at FVOCI (Note 10) 5002000 
Revaluation increment in office condominium (Note 14) 10,802,318 
Income tax effect p124o,695) 

7 561 623 
88 866 6 863 954 7425,151 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE lNCOME 
FOR THE YEAR, NET OFT AX 25,467J84 5,098.001 2,843,332 

TOT AL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS P30"'899 P53, 146,369 Pl21,616.980 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (INCOME) 
A TTRJBUT ABLE TO: 

Equity holders of the Parent Company (P345,761) P53, 105,883 P72,364 ,304 
Non<ontrolling interest 6502660 401486 49~52.676 

P304 899 P53 146 369 Pl21616980 

See accompa!IJ'ing Notu to Cot1Solidottd Financial Stattmtnts 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORA TJON AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CON OLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016 

~wl!Z AttrilNtablo •• !!!!!!z 11•141"1el11M r..-1 C.•i!!•[ 
.... 11 ..... toH 
C• lo{LM)oe lltat•......_.., su ... 

l'l'"hy- a..lllontloo °""-"''•Ir C.la(LA.) .. C.••""' '~•1f) 
AHltloul .. Aai-of l)(pMll , .. ,_ 

VllhRet"""Miol .....,_.. T,....i.t-. Aflribw~bk r• 
c..- PaW.. H~ '•l•tt Sted. i.. Ofl'l<c ~ .. rvoo ............ C1tt••ta1hrc ""•""'_,_.,., 

.. __ 
Na~~& TIT.lllMry s .... C.plf.i l•ffY"ttl s--rip<loo C-n a..i APS nn..w - r ...... ...- AftlKU..tt g.,......, I nttr<nt (!'Cl) Sled 

[l:!2!! l!l ~l!l 2!!!!! l?l l!:!!!•l?l !?!!!!!"I A-.~ l!!l 1!:!!!•111 AdJ-1 I!:!!!• Ill (Mldol s-.i ~·!! ~l!l TM.a.I ~-l'h 

••btttctt •t Ottt._, ll11' •~ '~-•lt,'11 PU-"'.* ,_ ,_ Pll.-,n9 '!o:!P~ !~Cl ("1~7l21 ":!!: ... ~- PSll,IH.lll !Pll.76',1'' 1 {!1µ1~ 

-~"" .......... (71.641 tml (11.641.0'TZ) l<tlll l..."'O) 11 2• 4bO tr: °'* __ .. __ 
ncto£1u 7,S61,6ll 111,190 11J6,• n1 j4 l.ll lS!l 1,211,ru (<AO,• SC.! 21.n,11: 

ICJUl-•n<-~I 7,S6116D 111,196 (1J61• n1 (41111113!! (!S1"41,!!2!} l~l64,>041 10,11~616! 11n,01om1 
Dopottu"" llmn - -..- IJ.941.0ll II ~1.0ll )."41 .0lt 
Tram(•olpmlOfto(_.,. 

,...,_ taolbaod .__.. 
1 SZI I Sll 29' .,_"' __ Jl,111• , .. ~ ... 11 '~"~ ll.'41,'71 ll.IS:!04 ~!!!1141 !'i!!!i!:!!l (5.ltl.• t11 64,.>1'.lOS 7&.S.ln."' jUlll.l'!l Q,l .. ~ • .,.Z10,,M4 

,..., .... 
O.htt~- ... o( 

(SI 104.llSI (SI 104 lHI 11000'!\) ( '1 :u l""O\ 

... 12,140 1511 6,116l,'X4 115
1
196 •,991,191 09,!IO'I s,~001 

Td.ol ...... dlt•ISIW '-!!!!!! j!,7.0 lSll 6,16>,ts< rn,1'16 jSI, 104,llSI 11i,1os,1111 !40,•161 j\l,146,~ 
1--of upoto! llOdJ 26.104.081 76 204,0U l6 204 Cl) 

$"""''-"""' (IJl,020) (lll .020) fill 010) 

C--.-of "-"' li>r""'"' 
.........,. tocapigl JWCI: 10191,467 l ,049,611 (11.941 071) 

E-.o(~loo..,....., 

any.ns •aJuo or _._A>lttng ....... (H.941929) IH °'S.91"1 <I ) ' IJSl 40~ A~J 

f....tao(_o(,__ 
__ .......,. 

... I 541911 I S<I 911 
ftofaO<tU( 0...MMrJl1101l '17.11,!.111 J~it11n1 !!!.!4~'2!.l 17~13J 1.!"·"° !,l!:!,1 11 !~·~ 111"1'°1 .... .,J,7•7 !.!111'-1"! !l.1 ... - 1 ·~i.~· ,...._ \lS,111.623) (n.111.W) (6'°.~) tlS.771.211) 

°""' ~""''"'·• l--... jl,71•,611) !411,114! ··.- ll,144, .. , 25,467,)14 ?\ 467
1
JIA 

Total eot111t .... 11f'W'e tflC:IO'fMOoul p,11•,611! 1•11,1>•! 41,610 11,54:0, .. 9 11s,121,62ll J0,161 !6'0,6601 (JOoo,199) 
1...,._at...,.w _., M.711,000 6,6711.712 )}.)9) 112 l l .19).712 
~tw"e.-...nocco.t (l67.2l0) (l6l 1JO) (21>' 2\01 r-e1,...._o1_ 

-fuM.od,-.P ... I S<l '10 I S<I 910 

l•bMH•t Ott41iat>ff'Jl l Jtll P7V.!~!:;m r•;:u~ l"~~ml 
,._ 

"~'°~" '1 ,IU~7t r1,1s1
1
, .. l'' .J' '"I~ 1"17$4•1ot !"~ 1e1l!!J 

,,,,.-..,.. 
!"~1 14-461 l'UfO.MOl ,... ... .k<.'" 

....,.......,....,,.,.,. c........,,.~~· 

111111111111mmmn 



BA IC ENERGY CORPORA TJON AND UBSJDIARIES 
CO SOLID A TED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December JI 
2018 2017 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVJTlE 
Loss before income we (P22,062.929) (P4 8,73J,272) (P 120.818,853) 
Adjustments for: 

Excess of net assets acquired over cost of associate (Note 11 ) (24,184,059) 
Fair value adjustment on investment prope11ies (Note 12) (21,394,000) (71 ,955,696> 
Loss on sale of investment properties (Note 12) 10,728,788 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 14) s,i.2,oso 5,421 ,968 J,586,931 
Share in net loss of associates (Note 1 I) 5,077,498 
Retirement expense (Note 21) 4,220,882 6,452,89 1 6,022.191 
Goodwill impairment loss 3,757,602 
Interest expense (Note 16) 3,415,799 444,792 
Provision for impairment of deferred exploration costs 

(Note 13) 2,946,624 t66.7t3,m 
Interest income (Note 18) (2,07 1,143) (3,292,064) (4,633,256) 
Unrcaliz.ed foreign exchange lo~ses (gains) - net (1 ,439,829) 1,375,008 (16,414,280) 
Reversal of impairment loss on receivable (Note 7) (590,941) 
Dividend income (Note 10) (1,280) (3,625,953) (4,820,629) 
Gain on sale of AFS financial assets (Note 10) (1,680,256) 
Gain on sale of ErOEert;r: and ~UiEmcnt (Note 14) (1,61 I) 

Operating loss before working capital changes (36,354,938) (43,636,886) (42.321 ,6)2) 
Increase in: 

Receivables (3,208,671) (761 ,717) (40,046) 
Prepayments and other current assets ( 1,024,652) (3,896,401 ) (3,771 ,971 ) 

Increase (decrease) in accounts Ea;r:able and accrued ex~nses 210141204 {236~61} 2,5661861 
Cash used in operations (38,574,057) (48,53 1,265) (43,566,788) 
Contributions to the retirement fund (Note 21 ) (7 ,000,000) (6,500,000) 
Interest received 2,227,454 3,079,342 4,633,256 
Income taxes Eaid (4201992) (6561162) {210421065) 
Net cash flows used in OEerating activities {361767~9~ {53, 108,085) !47,475,597) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of investments in associates (Notes 8 and 11) (32,235, 151) 
Receipt (payment) of refundable deposits (Note 8) 22,819,500 (171,712, 161 ) 
Additions to: 

Deferred exploration costs (Note 13) (11,330,887) (29,873,551 ) (29,933,862) 
Propeny and equipment (Note 14) (179,098) (3,249,645) (1 80,029) 

Dividends received 1,280 4,41 4,206 4,820,629 
Proceeds from sale of: 

Investment propenies 4,124,183 
AFS financial assets 88,210,256 25,000,000 
Property and equipment 10,780 

Increase in other nonculTCl'lt assets (31037,566} {1.865,043) {467!714) 
Net cash flows used in investing activities (19,8371739} (114,075.938) (7501196) 

(Forward) 

IHIHll~llOI rn 1 1~ 



CASH FLOWS FROM FlNANCING ACTrYITIE 
Proceeds from: 

Issuance of capital stock (Note 17) 
Loan availmcnt (Note I 6) 
Advances from stockholder (Note I 9) 
Deposit for future stock subscription (Note 17) 

Interest paid (Note 16) 

. 2. 

et cash flows from financing activities 

ET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON 
CASH A D CASH EQUTV A LENTS 

CA Ii A D CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

See accompanying Notes 10 Consol/dared Financial Stoltme11t.r 

Yurs Ended December 3 l 

2018 2017 2016 

P26,45S,770 P26,073,063 p 

50,000,000 
6,670,782 

13,94 I ,078 
{444,792) 

23,039,971 82,299,0SJ 13,941,078 

(33,565,363) (84,884 ,970) (34,284,7 I 51 

629,931 288,473 (7 , 104,470) 

159,625,88 I 20I,015,066 

P42,093,952 fl75,029,384 PI 59,625,881 

llflHD 11811~ Ill U 



BA JC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE 
OTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Corporate Information and Authorizat ion for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial 
tatemcnts 

Corporate Information 
Basic Energy Corporation (the Parent Company), a publicly listed corporation, and its subsidiaries 
(collectively referred to as the Group) were incorporated in the Philippines on September 19, 1968 

On August I 0, 2007, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the 
amendment of the Parent Company's primary and secondary purposes, transforming the Parent 
Company into a holding company with diversified business interests in the different fields of renewable 
energy and alternative fuels, while pursuing its core business in oil and gas exploration and 
development. 

The Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) has issued a memorandum stating the sector and subsector 
reclassification of the Parent Company. From Oil subsector of the Mining and Oil Sector, it has been 
changed to Electricity, Energy, Power and Water subsector of the Industrial sector. This is the result of 
PSE's review of the Parent Company' s plans and prospects, and in consideration of the Parent 
Company's recent developments and change in business activity. The reclassification took effect on 
October 24, 2016. 

In April 10, 2018, SEC approved the amendment of Article Four of the Parent Company's Amended 
AFticles of Incorporation for the extension of its corporate life for SO years from and after September 19. 
2018. 

The Parent Company's registered business address is at 7th Floor, Basic Petroleum Building, C. Palanca 
Jr. Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City. 

Authorization for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial Suitements 
The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended 
December 3 I , 201 8, 2017 and 20 16, were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on 
March 28, 2019. 

2. Basis of Prepantion, Basis of Consolidation and Statement of Compliance 

Basis of Preparation 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for quoted 
financiaJ assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and investment properties 
that have been measured at fair value and office condominium that bas been measured at revalued 
amounts. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (}l), which is the 
Group's functional currency. Amounts are rounded off to the nearest Philippine Peso unless otherwise 
indicated. 

Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as at 
December 31, 2018 and 201 7, and for the years ended December 31 , 2018, 2017 and 20 I 6. 
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Subsidiaries . Subsidiaries are entitie!. over wh ich the Parent Company has co11 1rol. 

The Parent Company controls an investee if, and only if, the Parent Company has. 

• Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevanl 
activities of the investee); 

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 

When the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the 
Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over 
an investee, including: 

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee; 
• Rights arising from other conrracrual arrangements; and 
• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights. 

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three clements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary 
begins when the Parent Company obtains conrrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent 
Company loses conrrol of the subsidiary. Assets. liabilities, income and expenses ofa subsidiary acquired 
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the 
Parent Company gains control until the date the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Consolidated statement of income and each component of consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
are attributed t0 the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interest (NCI) even if 
this results in the NCl having a deficit balance. 

The ownership of the Parent Company over the following subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018 and 
2017 are as follows: 

County of 
Subsidiaries % of Ownershi2 lnco~oration Nature of Business 
Basic Diversified Industrial 100.00 Philippines Investment holding 

Holdings, lnc. (BDIHl) 
iBasic, Inc. (iBasic) 100.00 Philippines lnfonnation technology 
Basic Renewables, Inc. (BRJ) 100.00 Philippines Exploration, development and 

utilization of renewable energy 
resources 

Basic Biofuels Corporation 100.00 
(BBC) 

Philippines Development ofbiofuels 

Basic Geothermal Energy 100.00 Philippines Exploration and development of 
Corporation (BGEC) geothermal energy resources 

Grandway Group Limited 100.00 Hong Kong lnvesonent holding 
(Grandway) 

PT Basic Energi Solusi 95.00 Indonesia Oil exploration 
(PT BES) 

Southwest Resources, Inc. (SRJ) 72.58 Philippines Oil exploration and investment 
holding 

NCI. NCI represents interest in a subsidiary that is not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent 
Company. 
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NCI represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held by the Group. Transactions .. , tth 
NCI are accounted for using the entity concept method whereby the difference bet\veen the 
consideration and the book value of the share in net assets is recognized as an equity transact ton 

NCI represents the 27.42% direct equity interest in the net assets of SRl and 5.00% indirect equity 
imerest in the net assets of PT BES as at Decem ber JI, 2018 and 2017. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an 
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

• Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary 
• Derecognizes the carrying amount of any NCI 
• Derecognizes the cumu lative translation differences, recognized in equity 
• Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received 
• Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained 
• Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss 
• Reclassifies the Parent Company's share of components previously recognized in other 

comprehensive income (OCI) to profit or Joss or retained earnings, as appropriate. 

All int:ra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses, and profits and losses resulting from intra­
group transactions that are recognized in assets are eliminated in fu ll. 

Statement of Comp I iance 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). 

3. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 

The Group applied for the first time certain pronouncements, which are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January l, 2018. 

• Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based 
Payment Transactions 

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the 
measurement of a cash-sett.led share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based 
payment transaction with net settlement fearures for withholding tax obligations; and the accounting 
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its 
classification from cash settled to equity settled. 

On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but 
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are 
met. Early application of the amendments is permined. 

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

IUllHllllJllm ~I I m 
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• PFRS 9. Financial Instruments 

• 

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments prOJCCt and replaces PAS 39, Fina11c1al 
instruments: Recognition and Ml'asurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard 
introduces new requirements for dassification and measurement, impainnent, and hedge 
accounting. Retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is not 
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some 
limited exceptions. 

The adoption of PFRS '9 from January I , 201 8 resulted in changes in accounting policies. 
particularly on the accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39's 
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected cred it loss (ECL) approach, but did not 
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. Also, the Group's financial assets 
previously classified as loans and receivables under PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at 
amortized cost under PFRS 9, wh ile the investments in debt securities and equity securities 
previously classified as available-for-sa le (AFS) financial assets under PAS 39 are classified as 
financial assets at FVOCJ under PFRS 9. The adoption of PFRS 9 did not result to changes in the 
classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group has provided other required 
information in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. 

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial instruments under 
PFRS 9 and PAS 39 at the date of initial application. 

Original M~suremtnt OrigJnal Catryina Ntw Mcasurtmenl 
Cate1ory l ndrr Amo unt Under Cateaory Under 

Flnanc~I Autu PAS 39 PAS 39 PFRS 9 
Cuh and cash equi"almts Loans and rccc1veblcs P75.029,3S4 Financial a:sscts at amortir.cd cost 
Receivables Loans and receivables 2,687,022 Financial asSdS at amortiud cost 
Refundable deposits Loam and receivables 171,429,108 Financial assetS at amortir.cd cost 
lnvestmenlS in: 

Debt securities 
Equity securities 

A FS financial assets 
AFS ti naru:i al a:.seu 

39,839,205 Fin1111cial asset 81 FVOCI with ~cling 
6,2 I t ,923 Financial asset at FVOCI without ~ycling 

Amendments to PFRS ~ , lnsuran~ e Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4 

Nt" Ca rryi ng 
Amount ndtr 

PFRS9 
P75,029.384 

l,687,022 
171,429.108 

39,839,205 
6,211,923 

The amendments address concern:. arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financia l 
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The amendments 
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts : a temporary exemption from applying 
PFRS 9 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 201 8. An entity may elect the overlay approach when it first 
applies PFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to financial assets designated on transition 
to PFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting the overlay approach if, and only 
if, the entity restates comparative information when applying PFRS 9. 

The amendments were not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the Group have 
activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts. 

• PFRS I 5, Revenue from Contract~ with Customtrs 

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that applies to revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. 
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The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more st ructured approach to measuring and recognizing 
revenue. 

PFRS 15 supersedes PAS 11 , Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related lnterpretattons 
and it applies to all revenue arisi ng from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the 
scope of other standards. TI1e new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue 
arising from contracts with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring good!> 
or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, tal<ing into 
consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to 
contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs 
of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract. The Group adopted 
PFRS 15 us ing the modified retrospective method of adoption. 

The Group undenook an analysis of the impact of the new revenue standard based on a review of 
the contractual tenns of its management services agreement and assessed that the amount and timing 
of revenue recognized under PFRS 15 is the same as that under PAS 18. 

Adoption of the standard did not have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

• Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture ac Fair Value (Part of Annual 
Jmprovements to PFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle) 

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying 
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its 
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify 
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint venture 
that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair 
value measurement applied by that invesbnent entity associate or joint venture to the investment 
entity associate's or joint venrure's interests in subsidiaries. Th is election is made separately for 
each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which {a) the investment 
entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an 
investment entity; and {c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. 
The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. 

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers oflnvesbnent Property 

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under 
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a 
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet. the definition of investment 
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management's intentions for 
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments shou Id be 
applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reponing 
period in which the entily first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is only permitted 
if this is possible without the use of hindsight. 

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the adoption of these 
amendments did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements. 
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• Philippine Interpretation IFRJC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance C1 nsideratton 

The interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on init1JI recognition of 
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmond ary ru.set or 
nonmonetary liability relating to advance consideratjon, the date of the transaction i!- the date on 
which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the 
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must 
determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance considerution. Entit ies 
may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity mJy apply the 
interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially 
recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the 
interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative infomiation in 
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation 

Since the Group's current practice was in line with the clarifications issued, the adoption of these 
interpretations did not have any significant effect on its consolidated financial statements. 

Standards Issued but not yet Effective 
Pronouncements issued bur not yet effective ere listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group 
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on its 
consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they 
become effective. 

Effective Beginning on or after January 1, 201 9 

• Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

The amendments to PFRS 9 allow debt instruments with negative compensation prepayment 
features to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income An 
entity shall apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January I, 
2019. Earlier application is permitted. 

The amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no debt 
instrument with negative compensation prepayment feature. 

• PFRS I 6, leases 

PFRS I 6 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to 
the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two recognition 
exemptions for lessees - leases of ' low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases 
(i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee 
will recognize a liability to make lease payments ( i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing 
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees wi ll 
be required to separately 1Uognize the interest expense on the lease liabilrty and the depreciat ion 
expense on the right-of-use asset. 

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain evenis 
(e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an 
index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amount of 
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. 
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Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substan tially unchanged from today's acco unting under 
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to class ify all leases using the same classification principle as in 
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. 

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS 17 

Early applicacioo is pennined, but not before an entity applies PFRS 15. A lessee can choose to 
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The 
standard 's transition provisions pennit certain reliefs. 

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16. 

• Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Venrures 

The amendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-tenn interests in an 
associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shall 
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January I, 2019. Earlier 
application is permitted. 

The Group is currently assessing the impact of th is amendment on the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Philippine Interpretation IFRlC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve 
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the 
scope of PAS 12, nor docs it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties 
associated with uncertain tax treatments. 

The interpretation specifically addresses the following: 

Whether an entity consider.; uncertain tax treatments separately 
The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities 
How an entity detennines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 
credits and tax rates 
How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances 

An entity must detcnnine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together 
with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolut ion of 
the uncertainty should be followed. 

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation. 

llrfiHIDJ lllll~I I H 
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• Annual lrnprovements to PFRSs 20I S- 201 7 Cycle 

Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, Pre\ iously 
Held Interest in a Joint Operation 

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joini 
operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including 
remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair 
value. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint 
operation. 

A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain 
joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a 
business as defined in PFRS 3. The amendments clarify that the previous ly held interests in that 
joint operation are-not remeasured . 

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is 
on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 
2019 and to transactions in which it obtains joint control on or after the beginning of the fi rs t 
annual reporting period beginning on or after January I, 2019, with early application permined. 

These amendments are currently not applicable to the Group but may apply to future 
transactions. 

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments 
Classified as Equity 

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly 
to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions co owners. 
Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other 
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past 
transactions or events. 

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2019, with early application pennitted. These amendments are not relevant to the 
Group because dividends declared by the Group do not give rise to tax obligations under the 
current tax laws. 

Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Cosrs, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization 

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing 
origiaaJly made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to 
prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. 

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the 
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies 
those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with 
early application permitted. 

The amendments are not applicable to the Group as it has no borrowings intended to develop a 
qualifying asset. 
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Ejfect1ve Beginning on or after January I. 2020 

• Amendments lo PFRS 3, Defini1ion of a Business 

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the 
assessment of a market participant' s ability lo replace miss ing elements, and narrow 1he dcfini1ion 
of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substan1ive 
and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which pem1 i1s 
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. 

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or afte r 
January l, 2020, with earlier application permitted. 

These amendments will apply lo future business combinations of the Group. 

• Amendments to PAS I, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Polic1es, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material 

The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS I and align the definitions used across 
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the existing 
requirements rather than to significantly impacl an entity 's materiality judgements. 

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or aflcr 
January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted. 

Effective Beginning on or after January I, 2021 

• PFRS 17, lnsurance Contracts 

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition 
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4. This 
new standard oo insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance contracts 
(i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue 
them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation 
features. A few scope exceptions will apply. 

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts thal is 
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are 
largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a 
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of 
PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by: 

• 

• 

A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features 
(the variable fee approach) 
A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration 
contracts 

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January I, 2021 , with comparative 
figures required. Early application is permitted . 
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Deferred Ejfectiviry 

• Amendments to PFRS I 0, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, ale or Contribution of 
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS I 0 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of 
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments 
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves 
a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or 
contribution of assets that docs not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent 
of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture. 

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective date 
of January I, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards Board 
completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the 
simplification of accounting for such transacrions and of other aspects of accounting for associates 
and joint ventures. 

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in two statements: a 
statement displaying components of profit or loss (consolidated statement of income) and a second 
statement beginning with profit or loss and displaying components of other comprehensive income 
(OCI; consolidated statement of comprehensive income). 

Current versus Noncurrent Classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on 
current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is: 

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
Expected to be realil.Cd within 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period; or 
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least 12 months after the end of the financial reporting period. 

A II other assets are classified as noncurrent. 

A liability is current when: 
It is expected to be settied in normal operating cycle; 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the financial reporting period; or 
There is no uncond itional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the end of the financial reporting period. 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. 

Fair Value Measurement 
The Group measures financial assets at FVOCI, AFS financial assets and investment properties, at fair 
value at each end of the reporting period. 

ll[J]HHll llHI Bl m~~ 
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market part icipant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to anolher 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fa ir value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significam to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring bas is, 
the Group detennines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is 
determined by reference to quoted market close prices at the close of business at the end of the financial 
reporting period. 

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair value is detennined using valuation 
techniques. Such techniques include comparison to similar invesunents for which market observable 
prices exist and discounted cash flow (DCF) analysis or other valuation models. 

For the purpose of fair vaJue disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level in the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 

An analysis of the fair values of financial assets at FVOCJ and investment properties and further derails 
as to how they are measured are provided in Note 26. 
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Cash and Cash Eguivalents 
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in banks earn interest at flon1ing rates based on dad) 
bank deposit rate. 

Cash equivalents are short-tenn, h ighly liquid investments that are readily co nvenible to known 
amounts o f cash with original maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value. 

Financial Instruments (Prior to Adoption o f PFRS 9) 

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the conso lidated 
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions o f the instrument. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established b) 
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date (i .e .. 
the date that the Parent Company commits to purchase or sell the asset). 

Initial Recognition and Measuremenl. The Group determines the classification of financial instruments 
at initial recognition and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every end o f 
the financial reporting period. 

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Directly attributable transaction costs are 
included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and financial liabilities, except for financial 
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) . 

• Financial Assets Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are c lassified into the following 
categories: financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, 
and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets o r as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in 
an effective hedge, as appropriate. The classification depends on the purpose for which the 
investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market. 

• Financial liabililies. Also under PAS 39, financial liabil ities are classified as financial liabil ities at 
FVPL, derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, or as other financial 
liabilities. The Group determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and 
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every financial reporting date. 

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contnictual agreement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a 
component that is a financial liability, are reported as expenses or income. Distributions to holders 
of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any related income 
tax benefits. 

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets and liabilities depends on 
their classification as follows: 

• Loa11S and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market. They arise 
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading 
the receivables. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured in the 
consolidated statement of financial position at amortized cost us ing the effect ive interest rate (EIR) 
method, less any provision for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that arc an integral pan of EfR. The losses 
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arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the loans and 
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the 
financial reporting date or within the Parent Company's operat ing cycle. Otherwise, these are 
classified as noncurrent assets. 

• AFS Financial Assets . . AFS financial assets include investments in equity and debt securities. 
Equity investments classified as AFS financial assets are those which are neither classified as held 
for trading nor designated at FVPL. Debt securities in I.his category are those which are intended to 
be held for an indefinite period of time and wh ich may be sold in response to needs for liquid ity or 
in response to changes in the market conditions. 

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequenUy measured at fair value with 
unrealized gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the 
"Net unrealized gain on changes in fair value of AFS financial assets" account until the investment 
is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative loss is reclassified 
to consolidated statement of income and removed from OCJ. 

The Group evaluated its AFS financial assets whether the ability and intention to sell them in the 
near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to 
inactive markets and management's intention to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable 
future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances. 

Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition 
of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the 
foreseeable future or unril maturity. Reclassification to the HTM category is permitted only when 
the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset accordingly. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the AFS financial assets category, any previous gain or loss 
on that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to the consolidated statement of income 
over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR method. Any difference between the new 
amortized cost and the expected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset 
using the ElR. lfthe asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in 
equity is reclassified to consolidated statement of income. 

• Other Financial Liabilities. Issued financial instruments or their components which are not 
designated as at FVPL are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the 
contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another 
financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. 

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are 
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after 
deducting from the instrument as a whole, the amount separately detennined as the fair value of the 
liability component on the date of issue. 

After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by talcing into account any discount or 
premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the EIR. Other financial liabilities are 
classified as current liabilities when it is expected to be settled within 12 months from the end of the 
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reporting period or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liabilities for at least 12 months from the end of the reporting period. 

Amortized cost is caJculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that arc an integral part of the EJR. The EfR amortization shall be included in 
"Other income (charges) - net" in the consolidated statement of income. 

Other financial liabil ities are included in current liabilities if senlement is to be made within 12 
months from the financial reporting date . Otheiwise, these are classified as noncurrent liabi lities. 

lmpainnent of Financial Assets (Prior to Adoption of PFRS 9) 

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. An impainnent exists if one or more events that has occurred 
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ' Joss event'), has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 

Evidence of impainncnt may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability 
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there 
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic 
conditions that correlate with defaults. 

l oans and Receivables. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses 
individually whether objective evidence of impainnent exists individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the 
Group determines that no objective evidence of impainnent exists for individually assessed financial 
assets, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit 
risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impainnent. Those characteristics are relevant to the 
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to 
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are 
individually assessed for impainnent and for which an impainnent loss is, or continues to be, recognized 
are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amoun1 and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not 
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is 
discounted at the financial assets' original EIR 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of 
the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income continues to be accrued 
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash 
flows for the purpose of measuring the impainnent loss. The interest income is recorded as pa.rt of 
"Interest income" in the consolidated sr.atement of income. 

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized impajnnent loss is 
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the 
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 

llHrlllllOI [II 



- 15 -

In relation to receivables, a provision for impaim1ent is made when there is objective evidence (such n 
the probabil ity of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be 
able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying amount of 
the receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired receivables are 
derecognized when they are assessed es uncollectible. 

AFS Financial Assets. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

In case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. The determination of what is 
"significant" or "prolonged" requires judgment. The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more and 
" prolonged" as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. Where there is evidence of 
impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current 
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income is removed from OCI and recognized in consolidated statement of 
income. 

Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through consolidated statement of income 
while increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity. 

In the case of debt instruments classified as A FS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the 
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the original 
effective interest rate on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is recorded as a component of 
"Interest income" account in the consolidated statement of income. If, subsequently, the fair value of a 
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognized in consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed 
through consolidated statement of income. 

Financial Instruments (Uoon Adoption of PFBS 9) 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Instruments: Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial assets are classified, at initiaJ recognition, as 
subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOCT, and fair value through profit or loss. 

The classification offinanciaJ assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual 
cash flow characteristics and tho Group's business model for managing them. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCJ, it needs to give 
rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on tho principal amount 
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level 

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets 
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., 
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
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Subsequent Measurement. For purposes of subseq uent measurement, fin11ncial assets are classified in 
four categories: 

Financial assets at amonized cost (debt instruments) 
Financial assets at FVOCT with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments) 
Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon 
derecognition (equity instruments) 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at Amortized Cost (Debt Instruments}. The Group measures financial assets at 
amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortized cost arc subsequently measured using the effective interest (ETR) method 
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized, modified or impaired. 

The Group's financial assets at arnorti:zed cost includes "Cash and cash equivalents", "Receivables·', and 
"Refundable deposits" in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (Debt Instruments). The Group measures debt instruments 
at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect 
contractual cash flows and selling; and 
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

For debt instruments ar fafr value through OCT, interest income Is recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income while foreign exchange revaluation and impainnent losses or reversals are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and computed in the same manner as 
for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in 
OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or 
loss. 

The Group's debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted debt 
instruments. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI (Equity Instruments). Upon initial recognition, the Group 
can elect to classify irrevocably its equity invesnnents as equity instruments designated at fair value 
through OCI when they mc~t the definition of equity under PAS 32, Financial lnstrument.s · 
Presenlation and are not held for trading. The classification is detcnnined on an inscrument-by­
instrument basis. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized 
as other income in the consolidated stlitement of income when the right of payment has been 
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the 
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financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair 
value through OCI are not subject to impainnent assessment. 

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its investments in unquoted equity secunties under th ts 
category. 

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) 
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows 
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to 
the contractual terms. 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from 
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures 
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is 
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of 
the default (a lifetime ECL). 

Financial Instruments: Financial liabilities 

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or Joss (FVTPL), loans and borrowings, payables, or as 
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Group's financial liabilities include "Accounts payable and accrued expenses", "Loan payable", 
"Dividends payable" and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered 
by other accounting standards). 

Subsequent Measurement -"Loans and Borrowings. This is the category most relevant to the Group. 
After injtial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral pan of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs under the 
"Interest expense" in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities CPriorto Adoption of PFRS 9) 

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financia l asset or part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is derecognized when: 

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
• the Group retains the right to receive cash flow from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pa} 

them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; or 
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• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a thi rd party under a 
'pass-through ' arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risk.s 
and rewards of the asset, buc has transferred control of the asset. 

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the 
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group' s continuing involvement in the asset. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considerat ion that the 
Group could be required to repay. 

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash­
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing 
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case 
of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fai r 
value, the extenc of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the 
transferred asset and the option exercise price. 

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under tJ1e liability is 
discharged or cancelled or ~as expired. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different tenns, or the term.s of an ex.isting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition ofa new liability, 
and the d ifference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of 
income. 

Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated 
statement offinanciaJ position if, and only if, there is a currently enforce-able legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related 
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Investments in Associates 
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the 
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or 
joint control over those policies. 

The considerations made in detennining s ignificant influence are similar to those necessary to determine 
control over subsidiaries. 

The Group's investments fr~ its associates are accounted for using the equity method. 

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recogniz.ed at cost. The carrying 
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognire changes in the Group's share of net assets of the 
associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment. 
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The consolidated statement of income reflects tJ1e Group's share of the results of operations of the 
associates. Any change in other comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of lh t: 
Group 's other comprehensive income. ln add ition, when tlierc has been a change recognized dircc1l) 111 

lhe equity of !lie associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions 
between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates. 

The financial s tatements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. 
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. 

After application of the equity method, the Group detennines whether it is necessary to recognize an 
impainnent Joss on its invostment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group detennines whether 
there is objective evidence tliat the investment in !lie associate is impaired. If there is such evidence. the 
Group calculates the amount of impainnent as the difference between the recoverable amount of the 
associate and its carrying value and recognizes the Joss in the consolidated statement of income 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes any retained 
invesnnent at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of 
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is 
recognized in profit or loss. 

Prepayments and Other Current Assets 

Prepaymenrs. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before tliey are utilized. 
This account comprises prepaid rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items. The prepaid 
rentals and insurance premiums and other prepaid items are apportioned over the period covered by the 
payment and charged to the appropriate accounts in consolidated statement of income when incurred. 
Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more than 12 months after the reporting period are 
classified as current assets otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets. 

Value-added Tax (VAT) . Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount ofV AT, tf 
applicable. When VAT from sales of services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases of 
goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated statement of 
financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds 
VAT from sales of services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the consolidated 
statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount. 

Investment Properties 
Investment properties, consisting of parcels of land owned by the Group, are measured initially ac cost, 
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition. investment properties are stated at fair 
value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in 
the fair values of investment properties are included in the consolidated statement of income in the year 
in which they arise. 

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment 
property is pennanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its 
disposal. Any gains or losses from derecognition of an investment property are recognized in 
consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal. 

Property and Eauipment 
Property and equipment, other than office condominium, are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and amortiz.ation and any impairment in value. 
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Office condominium is carried at revalued amount less depreciation and any impairment in value 
charged subsequent lo the date of the revaluation. Valuations are perfom1ed frequently enough to 
ensure that the fair value of revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying nmoun1. 

Any revaluation increment is credited to the "Revaluation increment in office condominium" account in 
the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position, net of the related deferred income 
tax liability. An annual transfer from the "Revaluation increment in office condominium" account to 
retained earnings is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying 
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost. Additionally. accumulated 
depreciation at the revaluat ion date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount oft.he asset and the 
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation increment 
relating to the particular asset sold is transferred to retained earnings. 

The initial costs of property and equipment consist of their purchase price and any directly attributable 
costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use. Expenditures 
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance 
costs, are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year in which costs arc incurred. 

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in 
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment 
beyond its originally assessed standard of perfom1ance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional 
cost of property and equipment. Major maintenance and major overhaul costs that are capitalized as 
part of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated 
useful lives, typically the period until the next major maintenance or inspection. 

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method to allocate the related assets ' 
cost to their estimated usefu I lives. The annual rates of depreciation for each category are based on the 
following usefu I lives of related assets: 

Machinery and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Building and building improvements 
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 
Office condominium 

Number of Years 
10 
5 

15 
3 

15 

The assets ' estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that these 
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the items of property and equipment 

Depreciation of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for use, i.e., when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. 

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss arising on derecognirion of 
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
item) is included in the coniolidatcd statement of income in the year the item is derecognized. 

Fully depreciated assets arc retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use. 
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Deferred Exploration Costs 
All exploration and evaluation costs incurred in connection with the panicipation of the Group in the 
determination of technical feasibility and assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource 
are capitalized and accounted for under the "successful efforts method" [determined on the basis of each 
Service Contract (SC) or Geophysical Survey and Exploration Contract] . These costs include matenals 
and fuel used, surveying costs, drilling costs and payments made to contractors. 

Once the legal right to explore has been acquired, costs directly associated with an exploration and 
evaluation are capitalized and amortized at the start of commercial operations. A II such capital iz.ed 
costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review, as well as review for indicators of 
impairment at least once a year. This is to confinn the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract 
value from the discovery. When an SC is permanently abandoned, all related capitalized exploration 
costs are written-off. SCs !ife considered permanently abandoned if the SCs have expired and/or if there 
are no definite plans for further exploration and/or development. 

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets 

Deferred Exploration Costs. The Group assesses at each reporting period whether there is an indication 
that its deferred exploration costs and project development costs may be impaired. lf any indication 
exists, or when an annual impairment testing for such items is required, the Group makes an estimate of 
their recoverable amount. An asset 's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use, and is determined for an individualjtem, unless such item does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets or 
CG Us. When the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, such item is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
to be generated by such items are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or 
CGU. 

Investment Properties, Property and EquipmenJ and Other Noncurrent Assets. The Group assesses at 
each reporting period whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any such 
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or 
cash generating unit (CGU) are written down to their estimated recoverable amounts. The estimated 
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair 
value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an ann's-length transaction 
less the costs of disposal w~ile value in use is the present va.lue of estimated future cash flows expected 
to a.rise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre­
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated 
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses of 
continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense 
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at each financial reporting date whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impainnont loss is reversed by a credit to 
current operations (unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in which case the reversal of the 
impainnent loss is credited to th.e revaluation increment of the same asset) to the extent that it does not 
restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what would have been detennined (net of any 
accumulated depreciation) had no impainnent loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognized in consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at revalued 
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amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such reversal, the 
amon1z.ation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount , less any 
residual value, on systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Prepayments and Ocher Current Assets. The Group provides provision for impainnent losses on 
nonfinancial prepayments and other current assets when they can no longer be realized. The amounts 
and Liming of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different Judgments or 
utilized different estimates. An increase in provision for impairment losses would increase recorded 
expenses and decrease prepayments and other current assets. 

Recovery of impainnent losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the 
impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The recovery is recorded 
in the consolidated statement of income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset due lo a 
recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss been 
recognized for that asset in prior years. 

Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the 
Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and 
number of shares issued and outstanding. 

Additional Paid-in Capital: When the shares are sold at a premium, the difference between the proceeds 
and the par value is credited to the " Additional paid-in capital" account. When shares are issued for a 
consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair value of the consideration received. 
In case the shares are issued to extinguish or settle the liability of the Group, the shares shall be 
measured either at the fair value of the shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is 
more reliably detenninable. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of new shares 
are charged to this account. 

Deposit for Future Stock Subscription. This pertains to the amount of cash and advances from 
stockholders as payment for future issuance of stocks. The Group classifies a deposit for future stock 
subscription as an equity instrument if it satisfies all of the following elements: 

• the unissued authorized capital stock of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of shares 
indicated in the contract; 

• there is BOD approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock 
(for which a deposit was received by the corporation); 

• there is stockholders' approval of said proposed increase; and 
• the application for the approval of the proposed increase has been filed with the SEC. 

If any or all of the foregoing elements are not present. the deposit for future stock subscription shall be 
recognized as a liability. 

Other Comprehensive lnco'!'e· Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense 
( including items previously presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity} that are not 
recognized in the consolidated statement of income for the year in accordance with PFRS. 
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Retained Earnings. The amount included in retained earnings includes cumulative profit or loss 
attributable to the Parent Company's stockholders and reduced by dividends. Dividends are rccogn1Led 
as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Parent Company's ilOD. 
Dividends for the period that are approved after the end of the financial reporting date are dealt with as 
an event after the financial reporting period. Relilined earnings may also include the effect of changes 
in accounting policy as may be requ ired by the accounting standard's transitional provisions. 

Basic/Diluted Loss per Share 

Basic Loss ~r Share. Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss attributable 
to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or reverse stock splits 
during the year. 

Diluted Loss per Share. Diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss 
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding. adjusted for any stock dividends declared during the year plus weighted 
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the di lutive ordinary 
shares into ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares. 

Revenue Recognition 
The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies an identified perfonnance obligation by transfernng a 
promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is considered to be transferred when the 
customer obtains control. The Group determines, at contract inception, whether it will transfer control 
of a promised good or service over time. If the Group does not ~atisfy a perfonnance obligation over 
time, the perfonnance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred LO 

the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. Prior to 2018, revenue is recognized to the extent that 
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured. 

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to detcnnine if it is acting 
as a principal or an agent. 

interest Income. Interest income from bank deposits is recognized as it accrues using the effective 
interest rate method. 

Dividend Income. Dividend income is recognized when the Group's right to receive payment is 
established. 

Other Income. Other income, which normally includes sale of property and equipment, is recognized as 
revenue when earned and received. 

Expenses 
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the fonn of outflows or 
occurrences of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to 
equity participants. Expenses are generally recognized when the services are used or the expense arises 
while interest expenses are accrued in the appropriate financial reporting date. 

Retirement Benefits 
The net retirement benefits liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the retirement 
benefit obligation at the end of the financial reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if 
any), adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling 
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is the present value of any economic benefits available in the fonn of refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

The cost of providing benefits under the retirement benefit plans is actuarially detennined usrng the 
projected unit credit method. 

Retirement benefit costs comprise the following: 
• Service cost 
• Net interest on the net retirement benefit liability or asset 
• Remeasurements of net retirement benefit liabili ty or asset 

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine 
settlements are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income. Past service costs are 
recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by 
independent qualified actuaries. 

Net interest on the net retirement benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net 
retirement benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is detennined by applying 
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net retirement benefit liability or asset. Net interest 
on the net retirement benefit liability or asset is recogniz.ed as expense or income in consolidated 
statement of income. 

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the 
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on retirement benefit liability) are recognized 
immediately in OCI in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods. Remeasurements recognized in OCI after the initial adoption of Revised 
PAS 19, Employee Benefits, are not closed to retained earnings account. These are retained in OCI until 
full settlement of the liability. 

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance 
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid direct ly to the 
Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price infonnation. When no market price is 
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a 
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected 
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of the 
related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is hjgher than the present value of the retirement 
benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting retirement benefit asset is limited to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds &om the plan or reduct ions in future 
contributions to the plan. 

The Group's right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a retirement 
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is 
virtually certain. 

Income Taxes 

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates 
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the financial reporting date. 
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Current income taX relating to items recognized directly in the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity is recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of income. Management 
periodically evaluates positions Laken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretat ion and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all 
temporary differences at the financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized 
for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

• where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset 
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss; 

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates 
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be 
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward 
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCJT) over the regular 
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO), to the extent that 11 is 
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences end the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, 
except: 

• where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss; 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with invesonents in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the 
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each financial reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available 
to allow aJI or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax 
assets are reassessed at each financial reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become 
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow the deferred income tax assets to 
be recovered. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is reajized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rate and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted at the financial reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority. 

Related Party Transactions 
Transactions with related parties are accounted for based on the nature and substance of the agreement, 
and financial effects are included in the appropriate asset, liability, income and ex.pense accounts. 
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egment Information 
The Group considers investment holding and geothermal energy projects as its primary activities I he 
Group has no geographical segmentation as the Group's operating business segments are neither 
organized nor managed by geographical segment. 

Foreign Currency Transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the date 
of the transaction. Monetaiy assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency rate of exchange rul ing at the end of the financial reporting period. Nonmonetary 
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates prevailing as at the date of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at the 
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 
determined. All differences are taken to "Other income - net" in the consolidated statement of income 
under "Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) - net" account. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed in 
the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Events after the Reporting Date 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the end of the 
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the Group's consolidated financial statements. Post 
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements when material. · 

5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of the consolidated .financial statements in compliance with PFRSs requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
consolidated financial statements. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial 
statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts an~ circumstances as of the date of 
the consolidated fmancial statements. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used 
in arriving at those judgments and estimates to change. The effects of the changes will be reflected in 
the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. 

Accountingjudgmcnts, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. 

Judgments 
In the process ofapplying the Group's accounting policies, management bas made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on amounts 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements: 
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Determination of the Group 's Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying 
circumstances relevant to the Group, the functional currency hns been determined to be the Philippine 
Peso. It is I.he currency that mainly innuences I.he operations of the Group. 

Determination of Significant Influence over an investee Company. The Group has I 5% interest each in 
VEPC and VlNTER, which is below I.he 20% threshold where significant influence is presumed under 
PAS 28. The Group considers its I 5% investments each in VEPC and VINTER as investments in 

associates as it concluded I.hat it has significant influence over the operating and financial policies of 11~ 
investments in associates due 10 Lhe followi ng: 

representation in the BOD; 
participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends and 
other distributions; and 
material transactions between Lhe investor and investee. 

ClassificaJion of Invesrment Property. The Group classifies its land as investment property or 
owner-occupied property based on its current intentions where it will be used. When the land is held for 
capital appreciation or when management is still undecided as to its future use, it is classified as 
investment property. The land which is held for rent are classified as investment property. 

Capitalization of Exploration and Evaluation Costs. Careful judgment of management is applied when 
deciding whether the recognition requirements for exploration and evaluation assets relat ing to the 
Group's exploration projects have been met. Capitalii.ation of these costs is based, co a certain extent. 
on management's judgment of the degree to which the expenditure may be associated with find ing 
specific geothermal reserve. This is necessary as the economic success of the exploration is uncertain 
and may be subject to future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments are based on the 
information available at end of each reporting period. 

Contractual Ca.sh Flows Assessment (Applicable upon adoption of PFRS 9). Beginning January I, 
2018, for each financial asset, the Group assesses the contractual tenns to identify whether the 
instrument is consistent with the concept ofSPPI. 

' Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial 
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of 
principal or amortization of the premium/discount). 

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration 
for the time vaJue of money and credit risk. To make the SP Pl assessment, the Group applies judgment 
and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the 
period for which the interest rate is set. 
ln contrast., contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the 
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount oucstanding. In such cases, 
the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL. 

Evaluation of Bu.siness Model in Managing Financial Instruments (Applicable upon adoption of 
PFRS 9). Beginning January I, 2018, the Group determines its business model at the level that best 
reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Group's 
business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated 
portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: 
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• How the perfom1ancc of the business model and the financial assets held within that business modl!I 
are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel; 
The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held \\ 1thm that 
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; and 

• The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group's 
assessment. 

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case ' 
or 'stress case' scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is 
different from the Group's original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the 
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when 
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward. 

Estimates and Assumptions 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
asset and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Esrimarion of Allowance for Impairment of Receivables. The Group reviews its receivables al each 
reporting date to assess the adequacy of the allowance for impairment. In particular, judgment by 
management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on factors such as, but not 
limited to, the length of the Group's relationship with the customer, customer's payment behavior and 
other known market factors. 

Estimation of Provision/or ExpeCJed Credi/ Losses (Upon Adoption of PFRS 9). The Group uses a 
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for 
each counterparty. 

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historicaJ observed default rates. The Group will 
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At 
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward­
looking estimates are analyzed. 

The assessment of the correlation between historicaJ observed default rates, forecast economic 
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in 
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and 
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the 
future. The information about the ECL on the Group's receivables is disclosed in Note 27. 

The canying values of receivables amounted to P 127.37 million and P2.69 million as at December 31 , 
2018 and 2017, respectively, net of allowance for impairment loss amounting to P2.14 million and 
¥2.73 million as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7). 

Jmpairmenl of AFS Financial Assets. The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when there has 
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence 
of impairment exists. The determination of what is "significant" or "prolonged" requires judgment. 
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The Group treats "significant" as 20% or more of the cost and "prolonged" as greater than 12 months for 
quoted equity securities. 

Allowance for 1mpainnent on quoted investment m shares of stock amounted to P3.SS million as at 
December 31, 2017 (see Note I 0). 

As at December 31, 2017, the Group assessed that there were no impairment indicators on ns financial 
assets at FVOCI. The carrying value of the Group's financial assets at FVOCI amounted to 
P-46.05 million as at December 3 1, 2017 (see Note I 0). 

Revaluation of Office Condominium and investment Properties. The Group carries its investmenr 
properties at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income, 
and carries its office condominium at revalued amount with changes in fair value recognized in the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The Group engaged an external appraiserto assess the fai r 
value of its invesunent properties as at December 31, 2018. 

For investment properties, a valuation methodology based on market approach was used, which 1s a 
comparative approach that considers the sales of similar or substitute assets and related market data and 
establishes a vaJue estimate by processes involving comparison. In addition, it measures the office 
condominium at revaJued amount, with changes in fair value being recognized in OCI. The market 
approach was used for the office condominium, which provides an indication of value by comparing the 
su bject asset with identical or similar assets for which price infonnation is available. The key 
assumptions used to determine the fair value of the properties are provided in Note 26. 

Revaluation increase on office condominium recognized under OCI in 2016 amounted to 
P7 .56 million. net of the applicable ta.x. Net book value of revalued office condominium amounted to 
P23 .30 million and P25.59 million as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 14). 

In 2018, the Group rccogni2.ed fair value adjustment on its investment properties amounting to 
P2 I .39 million. The carrying value of investment properties amounted to Pl 60.88 million and 
P275.38 million as at December 31, 2018 and 20 17, respectively (see Note 12). 

impairment of Property and Equipment. The Group assesses impairment on property and equipment 
recorded et cost whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these 
assets may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers imponant which could trigger an 
impairment review include the following: 

• significant underperfonnance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results ; 
• significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business; 

and 
• significant negative industry or economic trends 

As at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, the Group assessed that there were no impainnent indicators on its 
property and equipment. The carrying value of property and equipment, net of accumulated 
depreciation, amounted to Pl 7.73 million and P20.48 million as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, 
respectively (see Note 14). · 

impairment of Investments in Associate. Tho Group determines whether there is objective evidence that 
the investments in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of 
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and 
then recognius the loss in the consolidated statement of income. 
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impairment and Write-off of Oeferred Exploration Cos/S. The Group assesses impai rment on dcfrrrcd 
exploration costs when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may 
exceed its recoverable amount. Until the Group has sufficient data to determine technical feasibilit) and 
commercial viability, deferred charges need not be assessed for impairment. 

Facts and circumstances that would require an impairment assessment as set forth in PFRS 6, 
Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources, are as follows: 

• the period for which the Group has the right to explore in the specific area has expired or will e>.p1re 
in the near future and is not expected to be renewed; 

• substantive expenditure on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the 
specific area is neither·budgetcd nor planned: 

• exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the discover:­
of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the enticy has decided to discontinue 
such activities in the specific area; and 

• sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to proceed, 
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unl ikely co be recovered in full from 
successful development or by sale. 

For deferred exploration costs, impairment is recognized when a SC where the Group has participatrng 
interest is permanently abandoned. Future events could cause the Group to conclude that these assets 
are impaired. 

The Group recognized provision for impairment of deferred exploration costs amounting to 
P2.95 million, nil and P166.71 million in 2018, 20 17 and 2016, respectively. The carrying amount of 
deferred exploration costs, net of allowance for impairment loss, amounted to Pl 23.04 million and 
P 114.66 million as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 13). 

Estimation of Retirement Benefits. The cost of defined benefit pension plan as well as the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions which include the determination of the discount rates, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to th-e complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions 
and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. The assumptions made by the Group resulted in accrued retirement benefits amount ing to 
117 .87 million and P3.06 million as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 21 ). 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government 
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated 
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortal icy tables for the specific country and is modified 
accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. 

Realizability of Deferred lnccme Tax .Assets. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all 
temporary deductible differences to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profits will 
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utiliz.ed. Management has 
determined based on business forecast of succeeding years that there is no sufficient future taxable 
profits against which the deferred income tax assets will be utilized except for the deferred income tax 
assets related to the provision for impairment loss and some portion of NOLCO and MCJT. 
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The Group's deferred income tax assets amounted to nil and P3 .J9 million as at December 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. Deductible temporary differences and MCIT for which no deferred income tax 
assets were recognized as at December 31, 2018 and 201 7 are presented in Note 22. 

Determination of Fair Value of Investment Properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices 
in an active market for similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such information. the Group 
determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the 
Group considers information from variety of sources including: 

• current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location 
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences; 

• recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in 
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and 

• discounted cash flow (DCF) projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived 
from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence 
such as current market renrs for similar properties in the same location and condition and using 
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and tim ing of 
the cash flows. 

The Group recognized a fair value adjustment on its investment properties amounting to ?21 .39 million 
in 2018 which was based on the latest appraisal reporrs in 2018 for the parcels of land in Bolinao, 
Pangasinan, Taruiy, Rizal, and Gutalac, Zamboanga del Norte. The carrying value of the Group's 
investment properties amounted to Pl 60.88 million and P275.38 million as at December JI , 2018 and 
2017, respectively (see Note 12). 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on hand and in banks 
Cash equivalents 

2018 
P30181l,9S8 

11,281,994 
P42,093,9Sl 

2017 
Pl 1,180,736 

63,848,648 
P75,029,384 

Cash in banks and cash equivalents earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalentS 
are short-tenn investments made for varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the 
immediate cash requirements of the Group. 

Interest income on the Group's cash in bank and cash equivalents amounted to P0.52 million, 
P 1.09 million and Pl.62 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 18). 

7. Receivables 

Accounts receivable (see Note 12) 
Interest receivable . 
Advances to officers and employees 

Less allowance for credit/impairment losses 

2018 
P129.263,232 

200,262 
51,369 

129,514,863 
2,142,006 

P127,372 857 

2017 
P4,713,731 

356,573 
349,665 

5,419,969 
2,732,947 

P2 687 022 
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Accounts receivable arc short-term, noninterest-bearing receivables from third parties and are g.cncra ll~ 
settled on a 90-doy term. 1nterest receivable arises from the Group's cash equivalenis and invcstrncn1~ 

in debt securities. 

Advances to officers and employees pertains to the advances made by the Group to its officers and 
employees for the administration of its operations. These types of advances are settled through 
liquidation and reimbursement. 

The following table shows the movement in the allowance for impairment losses : 

At January I 
Reversal 
At December 31 

2018 
P2,732,947 

(590,941) 
Pl,142,006 

201 7 
P2,732,947 

P2,732,947 

Jn 2018, the Group collected its receivable from a related party and reversed the related allowance for 
impairment loss previously recogni:red for the receivable. 

8. Refundable Deposits 

On October 26, 20 17, the Parent Company's BOD approved the planned investments on various 
companies. The Parent Company paid refundable deposits to the following prospective investees which 
wi ll form part of the Parent Company's investments in these companies subject to the satisfactory resuh 
of its due diligence audits. 

Innocent Biomass Power GK (IBP) 
Vintage EPC Co. Ltd. (VEPC) and VTE International 

Construction Co. Ltd (VINTER) 
Solmax Power Limited (Solmax) 

2018 201 7 
P16,J83,711 PI S,325.133 

133,284,475 
22,819,500 

P16,183,711 Pl71 429,108 

a. 10% equity investment in IBP, a limited liability company incorporated and existing under the 
Laws of Japan - Under the signed investment term sheet, dated December 6, 2017, the intention of 
the parties is to enter mto a binding Shareholders Agreement (SHA) between the Parent Company 
and IBP. The Parent Company intends to invest up to I 0% of the total equity of IBP, with an 
option to increase to 20%, subject to discussion between the Parent Company and IBP after 
satisfactory results of the due diligence work on fBP and its 25MW Biomass Power Plant project 
located in Japan. 

As of December 31, 2018, the due diligence work conducted by the Parent Company is still 
ongoing. 

b. Up to 15% equity investment in VEPC, and VINTER limited companies formed and existi ng under 
the Laws of Thailand, which are wholly owned and controlled by Meta Corp. Public Co. Ltd. 
(META; formerly Vintage Engineering Public Co. Ltd.) - The intention of the Parent Company and 
META is to enter into a binding Share Purchase Agreement (SPA). The Parent Company invested 
15% each of the total equity ofVEPC and VINTER, with an option to increase the interest up 10 

20%. 
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VEPC and Yinter are the first counter-panics 11f Green Earth Power (GEP) Myanmar fo r the suppl)' 
and construction sarvlcc requirements of the Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) 
sub-contractor engaged for the 220MW solar power plant ofGEP Myanmar. 

On June 27, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a SPA with META 10 acquire 15% 
shareholding each in VEPC and VINTER for a total consideration of Pl45 .05 million. 
Consequently, the Parent Company applied the refundable deposit amounting to Pl 33.28 mil lion as 
partial payment to the acquisition cost (see Note 11 ). 

c. I 0% equity investment in Solmax, a limited company formed and existing under the laws of Hong 
Kong - Solmax initially identified two (2) solar power projects in Japan, namely; (I ) 8MWdc 
lbaraki Project and (2) 7MWdc Shimane Project, among other projects. The intention of the Parent 
Company and Solmax is to enter into a binding investment agreement (lA) upon satisfactory result 
of the due diligence audit. 

On September 28, 2018, the Parent Company, upon mutual agreement with Solmax, withdrew the 
planned equity invesbnent. Jn line with this, Solmax returned in full the refundable deposit to the 
Parent Company in December 2018. 

9. Prepayments and Other Current Assets 

lnput VAT 
Prepaid expenses 

2018 
Pll,583,024 

305,649 
P12,888,673 

201 7 
Pl 1,215,298 

648,723 
Pl 1,864,021 

Input VAT represents VAT paid on domestic purchases of goods 8Ild services. Prepaid expenses mainly 
consist of prepayments of the Group on rent, membership dues, life 8Ild non-life insurance, and 
communication expenses. 

l 0. Financial Assets at FVOCI and AFS Financial Assets 

Financial Assets at FVOCI 
Quoted debt securities 
Quoted shares of stock 
AFS Financial Assets 
Quoted debt securities 
Quoted shares of stock - net of allowance for 

impairment losses amounting to P3.55 million 

2018 

P37,624,594 
6,711,923 

P44,336,S17 

Quoted instruments are carried at fair market value as at the end of reporting period. 

2017 

P-

39,839,205 

6,21 1,923 
P46,051!128 

IUBHlll llrn ~~ I H 
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The movements in financial assets at FVOCI and AFS financial assets are as follows: 

At January I 
Disposal 
Unrealized losses 
At December 31 

2018 
P46,051,128 

(1,714,611) 
P44,J36,517 

2017 
p 135,321,886 

(86,530,000) 
(2,740,758) 

P46,05I,128 

The Group's investment in equity securities amounting to P86.53 million was sold in 2017. 

Annual interest rates in 2018 and 2017 on these debt securities ranged from 4.50'%-4.84%. Interest 
income earned on these securities amounted to P 1.55 million, P2.20 million and P3.01 million in 2018, 
201 7 and 2016, respectively (see Note 18). 

The movements in "Net unrealized gains on changes in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and AFS 
financial assets" presented as a separate component of equity follow: 

At January I 
Unrealized valuation Joss for the year 
Realized gain on sale of AFS financial assets 
At December 31 

2018 
Pl,897,990 
(1,714,611) 

Pl,183,379 

2017 
P5,638,748 
(4,42 1,014) 
1,680,256 

P2,897,990 

Dividend income earned from quoted equity shares amounted to Pl ,280, P3.63 million and 
114 .82 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

11. Investments in Associates 

Acquisition cost: 
At July 2, 2018 
Addition 
At December 31, 2018 

Accumulated equity in net earnings 
a.nd OCI: . 
Share in net loss for the period 

from July 2, 2018 to 
December 31 , 2018 

Excess in net assets acquired over cost 
Cumulative translation adjusonents 

VEPC 

Pl3l ,137,160 

13 1 I 13 7 I I 60 

( 4, I I 4,968) 
24,184,059 
21,025,356 

Jill 72,231,607 

VINTER 

PlJ,914,930 
25 433 056 
39,347,986 

(962,530) 

6,519,093 
¥44,904,549 

Total 

Pl 45,052,090 
25,433 056 

170,485,146 

(5,077,498) 
24,1 84,059 
27,544,449 

P21 7,136,156 

On July 2, 2018, the Group acquired a 15% interest each in VEPC and VINTER, companies 
incorporated under the laws of Thailand, wbicb are engaged in the engineering, procurement and 
construction services. The investments arc accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated 
financial statements. VEPC's and VlNTER's principal place of business is located at 128 Soi Liang 
Muang Nonthaburi I 0, Tambon Bangkasor, Amphur Muang Nonthaburi, Nonthaburi, I J 000, Thailand. 
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The following table shows the summarized financial information of VEPC and VfNTER as at 
December 31 , 2018 and for period from July 2, 2018 to December 3 I , 20 I 8: 

VEPC VTNTER 
Current assets P3,762,412,640 P868,S79,457 
Noncurrent assets 79,293,500 
Current liabilities 21933,6131619 6451459,830 
§quity P908,092,521 P223, 119,627 

Revenue P458,228,533 P84,647 ,229 
Cost of sales 424,S I 8,328 83,798,925 
Administrative expenses 34,656,762 6,526,735 
Finance cost 32,237,915 738,433 
Income tax benefit S,751,350 
Net loss 27,433,122 6,416,864 
Share in net loss of associates 4,114,968 962.530 

The associate had no contingent liabil ities or capital commitments as of December 31 , 2018. As at 
December 31, 2018, the undistributed earnings of the associates in the Group's retained earnings are not 
available for distribution to the shareholders unless declared by the associates. 

12. 1 nvestment Properties 

At January I 
Disposal 
Fair value adjustment 
At December 31 

2018 
P275,380,505 
(135,895,505) 

21,394,000 
P160,879,000 

2017 
P275,380,505 

P275,380,SOS 

The Group engaged an independent firm of appraisers to detennine the fair values of the following 
properties in 201 8 and 20 17: 

Lotat1DD 

Hi&bu111d 
Bat\JK 

Bohneo, PanJasin111 ResidQ\cial or 
~onal 

Tanay, Ru.al Agro-industml 
devdopmcnt 

Gutalac, Zambolng1 del Agricultinl 
None 

San Flbitn, Pangasinan Residential or 
rccreational 

Aru ln 
Sguart Melen 
403,836 

33,485 

11&,095 

112,981 

Al!l!rawl Dates A1!1!ra i11I V1luc 
2018 2017 2011 2017 

Dcctmber S, 2018 June 2S, 2016 fl145,311,000 fl'l 29.22S.OOO 

Dcttmbu 12, 2018 June 24, 20 16 10,046,000 5.023,000 

December 19, 2018 Aucust 14, 2016 S.•Sl,000 S.2J4,000 

June 2S, 2016 135.895,505 

P160,!'791DOO 1'275,.380,505 

The fair values were estimated through the market approach that considers the sales of similar or 
substitute assets and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving 
comparison. Records of recent sales and offerings of similar land are analyzed and comparison made 
for such factors as size, characteristics of the lot, location, quality and prospective use. 

Jn 2018, the Group sold its investment property located at Sao Fabian, Pangasinan for a consideration of 
Pl 25.22 million, a portion of which is still outstanding as at December 31 , 2018 which is lodged under 
"Receivables" in the consolidated statement of financial position (sec Note 7). 
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Direct operating expenses related to the investment properties include real propcr1)' taxes paid in 20 l 8 
and 2017 amounting to P0.28 million end P0.26 million, respectively. 

The Group has no restrtction on the realizabi lity of its investment properties and no contractual 
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and 
enhancement. 

13. Deferred Exploration Costs 

2018 
Otbrr SC5J 

Grolhcrmal Geothermal lndonul• ORJhort 
SCI- MAbiaf SCs OllProjw Mindoro To11I 

Al January I 1'73,160,130 PlJ,038.S 77 P147,93J.S84 P80,426,09J P324.SS8,684 
Additions 9~821608 118'8~79 llr;;!l0i!87 

82,642,738 24.816,856 I 47,933,884 80,.426,093 JJS,8S9,571 
Less allowance for 1ml!airmcn1 loss 2.!46162~ 147~33,884 61~6~.U 212M7,05l 

At OCCl:mbet 3 I Pll.£421738 Pll ,9,0,232 ,_ 
Pll,4S9~9 Plll,042,519 

2017 
Other SCSJ 

Gcotherm1I Geothermal Indonesia Onshore 
SC 8 - Mabini SCs Oil Project Mindoro Tol41 

Al January I fl4 S,961 ,9Jl P20.36J,22S 1'147,933,884 PS0,426.093 P294,68S, I JJ 
Md11lort5 27 198 199 1675 JS2 29 873 SS I 

7J.160.IJO 23.0J&.sn 147,933,884 80,426.093 324,558.684 
Less allowance for 

impeirmenl loss 14 7,933,884 611966,544 209,900,428 
Al Dcumber l l P73 160,IJO ft23 038 577 fL PIB 4S9 549 Pl 14 658 2S6 

The full recovery of the deferred exploration costs amounting to Pl23.04 million and Pl 14.66 million as 
at December 31, 201 8 and 201 7, respectively, incurred in connection with the Parent Company's 
participation in the acquisition, exploration and development of geothennal energy and oarural gas 
resources is dependent upon the discovery of steam and natural gas and other renewable resources in 
commercial quantities from the respective contract areas and the success of future developments thereof. 

The accumulated costs incurred in connection with the exploration contracts are shown under "Deferred 
exploration costs" account in the consolidated statement of financial position. The full recovery of these 
deferred exploration costs is dependent upon lhe determination of technical feasibility and commercial 
quantity of an identifiable ~source. 

In 2018, the Group recognized allowance for impairment amounting to P2.95 million for West Bulusan 
geothermal service contract In 2016, the Group recognized in full allowance for impairment amounting 
to P 16.22 million, P2.56 million and P 147 .93 million for deferred costs pertaining to SC 47, HSCs and 
Indonesia Oil Project, respectively. 

Details of the projects are discussed below. 

Oi l and Gas Service Contracts CSCsl 
The Parent Company is a party, together with other companies and the Philippine Government, through 
the Department of Energy (DOE) (collectively "the consortium"), to SC 53 (Onshore Mindoro) for the 
exploration, development and exploitation of the contract area situated in onshore Mindoro. 

1111111 llW ml I H 
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SC 53 (Onshore Mindoro). Contract Status SC 53 was awarded by the DOE on July 8, 2005 , for a ten­
year exploration period. It covers 6,600 sq. km. of the onshore areas of Mindoro Island which is within 
the Northwest Palawan region. Past exploration efforts in the area prior to issuance of SC 53 mcludcd 
the acquisition of 2,000 kilometers of 20 lend seismic data and the drilling of four exploration wel ls 
Hydrocarbons zones were reported but were of non-commercial quantity. 

Under SC SJ Sub-Phase I was carried out by Pitkin Petroleum Ltd. (Pitkin) under a Farm-Jn Agreement 
approved by DOE on June 11, 2008. Magnetotelluric (MT) survey was acquired in May 20 I 0 and over 
200 kilometers of 2D land seismic data. The exploration works was designed to delineate and assess the 
hydrocarbon potential ofthe Progreso-IX in San Jose, Mindoro Occidental and the Sablayan, Mindoro 
Occidental. Sub-Phase I, which was to end March 6, 2012 was fulfilled with the completion of the 200 
ki lometers of seismic data. Sub-Phase 2 commitment involve two (2) wells and a financial commitment 
ofUSS2,000,000. The consortium agreed to drill Progreso-2 to fulfill one of the 2 well obligations and 
the planned geology and geophysical works will be negotiated as fulfilment of the second well. The 
consortium approved a firm budget ofUS$8,4000,000 and the contingent budget amounts to 
US$6, 140,000. 

On October 24, 2016, the DOE approved the transfer of 70% interest and Operators hip of Pitkin 
Petroleum to Mindoro Palawan Oil and Gas Inc. under a purchase agreement 

The project was placed under a moratorium since May 29, 2012 with effectivity on March 6, 2012 when 
DOE approved the consortium's notice to enter Sub-Phase 2 in May 9, 2012. Sub-Phase 2 will start 
only upon the resolution of the lndigenous People (FAMA TOOi) case and the issuance of the 
Certificate of Pre-Condition by the National Commission on Indigenous Peoples (NCIP). The 
FAMA TODJ case was dismissed in December 2018. As of December 31, 2018, the NCIP is yet to issue 
the Cen ificate of Pre-Condition to the Parent Company. 

Deferred exploration costs pertaining to SC 53 amounted to P 18.46 million as at December 3 I, 20 I 8 
and 2017. 

Jndonesia Oil Project. In 2013, the Group embarked on the lndonesia Oil Project, as it had passed all 
the financial criteria for a project as set by the BOD, upon recommendation of Management, and had the 
potential of generating immediate cash flow in less than a year after drilling. The Group entered into a 
joint venture arrangement with Petrosolve Sdn Bhd (Petrosolve), a company registered in Malaysia, 
wh ich was engaged in the business of developing oil fields and held a technology for enhanced chemical 
oil recovery. The joint venture established Grandway Group Limited in Bong Kong, which is 70% 
owned by the Parent Company and 300/o owned by Petrosolve, as the corporate vehicle of the joint 
venture for the management and operation of oil wells. The joint venture then established PT Basic 
Energi Solusi (PT BES) as its operating arm in Indonesia with a 95% ownership interest. In 2017, 
Grandway became e wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company (see Note 17). 

PT BES, as a sub-contractor, entered into a cooperation agreement with PT Ekarnaro for the 
management and operation of ten (IO) oil wells located in the Dadangilo and Wonocolo areas in East 
Java., Indonesia. These wells are part of the wells covered by cooperation agreements between PT 
Ekarnaro and KUO Sumbcr Pangan and KUD Usaha Jaya Bersama. both of whjch had production 
agreements with Pertarnina, the entity vested by the Indonesian Government with the authority to 
manage old oil wells in Indonesia. 

PT BES drilled five (5) of the aforementioned ten (I 0) wells. However, {>roduction was low at only en 
estimated tot:BI of20,772 barrels compared to projections at the start of the project of269,346 barrels, 
while the buying price of Pertamina steadily dropped, from IDR4,160/liter (or USD73.50/barrel) at the 
start of the project, to IDR2,7 18/liter (or USO 34.57/barrel) by the 1st quarter of 201 S. Calculated 
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project internal rate of return (IRR), which was ac 85.88% at the stan of the project, had become 
negative. During this time, some miners moved for upward adjustments in their revenue sharing, which 
entailed negotiations with PT Ekamaro, the KUDs, and the miners concerned. Befo re negotiations 
could be final ized, Pertamina instituted changes in the framework for the operation of old oil wells and 
eventually suspended its contracts with the KUDs and designated a new temporary body, the 
Paguyuban, to handle logistics. 

By the middle of 2015, the project was placed on hold until Pertamina is able to final ize the 
organizational structure of local miners in said areas. These miners are slated to handle the management 
and operation of oil wells in said areas and with whom PT BES and/or PT Ekamaro shall enter into new 
co-operation agreements. Since 2015, Pertamina has not yet designated a new organization of local 
cooperatives or miners groups to supervise the oil operations from old oil wells in the area. 

Deferred exploration costs perta.ining to the Indonesia Oil Project amounted to P147.93 mill ion as at 
December 31, 2018 and 20.J 7, which was fully provided with allowance for impairment. 

Geothermal Service Contracts (QSCs) 
The Parent Company is likewise involved in the exploracion, development and production of geothermal 
energy. It has been awarded service contracts for various areas by the DOE, which prescribes the 
periods and programs for these service contracts, pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 87 for the Mabini 
GSC and pursuant to Republic Act (RA) No. 9513 (Renewable Energy Act of2008) for the subsequent 
GSCs. 

GSC 8. GSC 8, which is the Mabini, Bat:angas GSC, was awarded to the Parent Company on July 10. 
2008. The contract area is approximately 32.5 square kilometers and covers the Calumpan Peninsula. 
The contract period for exploration is five (5) years, and was extended up to 2015, subdivided in three 
(J) Phases. ln September 2015, DOE confirmed a one (1) year extension for its exploration. 

ln June 2017, the Parent Company submitted its Contract Year (CY) I 0 proposal to DOE. The primary 
focus and objective of the work program for CY I 0 is to resolve the cease and desist order issued by the 
Local Government Unit (LGU) ofMabini, Batangas to GSC 8 by conducting a comprehensive 
Information, Education and Communication (!EC) campaign together with DOE representatives. 

In December 201 7, the Parent Company carried out its IEC campaign on five (5) Barangays that were 
affected by the series of earthquakes that hit the Municipality ofMabini in April 2017. The IEC was 
supplemented by Lakbay-Aral in the Makiling-Banahaw Geothermal Fields which provided information 
to Mabinj residents on the benefits of geotherrnaJ energy. The !EC campaign was completed on May S. 
2018 and the cease and des..ist order was lifted on June 7, 2018. 

Other GSCs. The Parent Company was also awarded the service contracts from the DOE in February 
2013, covering four (4) geothermal projects, namely: Iriga Geothermal Power Project., Mariveles 
Geothermal Power Project, the East Mankayan Geothermal Power Project and the West Bulusan 
Geothermal Power Project., all carrying a maximum exploration period of five (5) years. These projects 
are undergoing permitting and coordination with the local government units involved and evaluation of 
data derived from recently conducted Controlled Source Magnetotelluric surveys. 
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The East Mankayan Geothermal Power Project lies immediately east of the Cervantes, llocos ur 
geothermal block of Pan Pacific Power Phi ls, Inc. and south of the Bontoc-Sadanga block which 1s 
operated by Magma Energy Resources. Immediately south is the Daklan block operated by Clean Rock 
Energy. The area actually covers the 3 provinces of Benguet, Mountain Province and Jfugao. The 
proposed area is surrounded by lots of known thermal manifestations, e.g. hot springs and thermally 
altered grounds. 

The Mariveles Geothermal Power Project, in Bataan is situated aJong the West Luzon Volcanic Arc 
which starts from Mt. Pinatubo in the north and extends farther south across the Manila Bay towards 
Batangas and nonheastern Mindoro. 

The Iriga Geothermal Power Project in Camarines Sur is bounded to the nonh by lsarog geothemrnl 
block of Philippine National Oil Company - Renewal Corporation and to the east by the highly 
productive Tiwi geothermal service contract area of AP Renewables Inc. The areal landscape is 
dominated by lriga or Asog Volcano, a relatively in strntovolcano immediately southwest of Lake Buh1 
in southern Luzon. 

In a Farm-in Agreement executed between Desco, Inc. and the Parent Company on January 22, 2016, 
the Parent Company assigned to Desco, lnc. an 80% participating interest in the lriga project. TI1e 
assignment was approved by the DOE in a Jetter received by the Parent Company on November 8, 2016. 
Desco, Inc. is now the operator of the Iriga project. 

In 2017, Desco, Inc. commissioned JJTech, a company incorporated in Taiwan, to conduct a Magneto 
MT Survey in the Iriga Block. The interpretation works identified resistivity anomaly in the area. 
Desco, Inc. undertook further geophysical reprocessing of the MT for refinement of the possible drill ing 
anomaly. As at December 31 , 2018, preparation is underway to drill one (I) exploration well to 
establish the geothennal resource in the area. Permitting works and other LGU coordination are 
ongoing for the drilling preparation. 

The West Bulusan Geothermal Power Project is situated in the municipalities of Juban, Magallanes, 
!rosin, Bulan, Matnog, Sant.a Magdalena, and Bulusan, in the province of Sorsogon. It is bounded on 
the northeast by the geothermal contract area of SKI Construction Group, Inc. and is in close vicinity to 
Mount Bulusan, an active volcano and a declared Natural Park by virtue of Proclamation No. 421 on 27 
November 2000. The DOE estimates the project site to have a potential installed capacity of 
50 megawatts. The area has previously been explored by the PNOC-Energy Development Corporation 
in the l 980's. Data gathered from this study is the take-off point for the feasibility study undertaken by 
the Parent Company. The Parent Company had requested the DOE to suspend the fmancial and other 
obligations of the Pa.rent Company for this project in view of difficulties encountered in securing the 
resolutions of support for the project from the local government units involved. 

ln December 201 7, the DOE terminated the West Bulusan Geothermal service contract. Accordingly, 
the Group recognized impairment of the related deferred exploration costs amounting to P2.9S million 
in 2018. However, the Pa.rent Company has filed a motion for DOE to reconsider its decision to 
terminate the said contract. 

Deferred exploration costs pertaining to GSCs amounted to PI04.58 million and P96.21 million as at 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 
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14. Property and Equipment 

At Cost 

Cost 
At January I 
Additions 
At December 3 I 
Accumulated Depreciatio n 
At January I 
Depreciation (sec Note 20) 
At December 31 

et Book Valuu 

Cost 
At January I 
Additions 
At December 31 
Accumulated Depreclltioo 
At January I 
Depreciation (see Note 20) 
At December 3 1 

et Book Valuu 

At Revalued Amount 

Revalued Amount 

Machinery and 
Equipment 

PIS,825,539 

18,825,539 

2,196,JJJ 
t,881.SSJ 
4,078,866 

Pl4,746,673 

Machinery and 
Equipment 

PIS,825,539 

18,825,539 

313 ,759 
1,882,554 
2,196,313 

P16,629,226 

At January 1 and December 31 
Accumulated Depreciation 
At January 1 
Depreciation (see Note.20) 
At December 31 
Net Book Value 
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T r• nsportuion 
Equipment 

PS,016.840 

8,016,840 

S,586,767 
5951120 

6,181,887 
PJ ,834,953 

Transportanon 
Equipment 

P5,041 ,240 
2 975 600 
8,016,8•40 

4,882,S78 
704, 189 

5,586,767 
P2,430,073 

2018 

Building and 
Bulldln& 

Improvements 

PS,283,338 
62098 

S,345,436 

4,221.,298 
220,855 

4,443,153 
P90l,283 

2017 

Building and 
Building 

Improvements 

P5,283,338 

S,283 ,338 

4,01 1,793 
210,505 

4,222,298 
Pl,061,040 

Office 
Equipmtnl, 

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

PI0,001, 113 
1J7 000 

10,118,113 

9,642,007 
229,951 

9,871,958 
P246,JS5 

Office 
Equipment, 

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

P9,n 7,068 
274 045 

10,001 , 113 

9,308,787 
333,220 

9,642,007 
PJS9, 106 

Tota l 

P42,126,8.JO 
179,098 

42,305,928 

21,647.385 
2,928,479 

24,575,864 
Pl 7,730,064 

Total 

P38,877, 185 
3 249.64 5 

42, 126,830 

18,516,91., 
3, IJ0,468 

21,647,385 
P20,479.445 

Office Condominium 
2018 201 7 

P28,649,000 

3,055,473 
2,291,200 
5.346,673 

P23iJ02,327 

P28,649,000 

763,973 
2,291,500 
3,055,473 

P'.25,593,527 

Revaluation of Office Condominium. The Group engaged an independent finn of appraisers, to 
detcnnine the fair value of its office condominium as at August 25, 2016. The fair value is detennined 
using the generally accepted market approach. The date of the appraisal was September S, 2016. 

Revaluation increment in office condominium as at December 31 , 2018 and 20 I 7 amounted to 
P 15. 7 5 million and Pl 7 .30 million, respectively, which is presented under the "Revaluation increment 
in office condominium" account in the consolidated statements of financial position and consolidated 
statements of changes in equity. 
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If the office condominium was measured using the cost model, the carrying amount as of 
December 31 , 2018 and 2017 would be as follows: 

Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

2018 
Pl ,730,010 
(1,268,674) 

P461,336 

2017 
Pl ,730,010 
(1!153,340) 
P576,670 

The cost of the Group's fully depreciated assets still in use amounted to PlJ.96 million and 
P.12.66 million as at December 31 , 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

15. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Withholding tax payables 
Government payables 

2018 
fl6,675,075 

1,944,996 
30S,598 

68,495 
PS,994,164 

2017 
P4 ,758,483 

1,719,565 
423,108 
78,804 

'fl6,979,960 

The Group's payables consists of short-term and noninterest-bearing trade payables to the Group's local 
suppliers with an average credit term of30 days. 

Withholding tax payable consists of withholding tax on compensation and expanded withholding tax. 
Government payables are liabilities to various government agencies generally payable within 30 days . 
Others are payables for professional fees and condominium dues. 

16. Loan Payable 

On November 29, 2017, the Parent Company obtained an unsecured short-term loan amounting to 
'fl50.00 milJion from a local bank which was renewed for another three (3) months on October 31 , 201 8. 
The loan bears an annual fixed interest rate ranging from 5.875% to 8.25% and 5.25% in 2018 and 
2017, respectively. Interest expense on this bank loan amounted to P3.42 million and P0.44 million m 
2018 and 2017, respectively. 

17. Equity 

Capital Stock 
The details of the capital stock are as follows: 

Authorized - P0.25 par value 
Un issued 
Issued 
Subscribed 
Subscription rCGCivable 

Issued and outstanding 

No. of Shares 
l 0,000,000,000 
(7,9.86,580,343) 

2,646,8<48,057 
(1,8«,875,000) 

801 ,973,057 

2018 
Amount 

Pl,500,000,000 
(1,996,645,086) 

503,35•1914 
661,711,014 

(461 ,218,750) 
100,493,264 

11703,848, 178 

2017 
No. of Shares Amount 

l 0,000,000,000 P2,500,000,000 
(8,093,472,343) (2,023,368,086) 
1,906,527,657 476,631,914 
2,646,848,057 661,712,014 

(1,844,875,000) (461.218,750) 
801,973,057 200,493,264 

2, 708,500, 714 P677 1125,178 
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In 2018, the Parent Company issued 106,892,000 shares at par value of P0.25 to MET A for a total 
consideration of P26.72 million. Share issue costs incurred related to the issuance amounting to 
P0.27 million was charged against "Additional paid-in capital". 

In 201 7, the Parent Company issued 148,382,202 common shares at P0.25 par value to META for a 
total consideration of P40. l 5 million. As a result, VTE applied the deposit for future stock subscript ion 
it paid in 2016 amounting to Pl 3.94 million and remitted additional cash amounting to P26 .2 l mill io n. 
Share issue costs incurred related to the issuance amounting to P0.13 million was charged aga inst 
"Additional paid-in capital". 

Below is the Parent Company's track record of registration: 

a. On January 26, 1973, the SEC authorized the Parent Company to sell to the public 617 .50 million 
shares out of its unissued capital stock as of December 31 , 1972 within one year from order date, 
unless extended by the SEC. As of December 31, 1973, the Parent Company's authorized capital 
stock is 1.50 billion shares with par value of PO.O I. 

b. On September 8, 1973, the Parent Company applied with the Manila Stock Exchange and Makati 
Stock Exchange for the listing of its capital stock as of September 8, 1973 (495 million fully paid-up 
shares and with respect to 1.0 billion shares, upon full payment and issuance of the corresponding 
stock certificates). The applications for listing were approved by the Board of Governors of both 
the Manila Stock Exchange and Makati Stock Exchange on September 30, 1973 and September 13, 
1973, respectively. Said listing was duly approved by the SEC on October 16, 1973. 

c. On October 17, 1974, the SEC approved the increase in the Parent Company's authorized capital 
stock from Pl 5.0 million (consisting of 1.5 billion shares) to P40.0 million (consisting of 4.0 billion 
shares) at the same par value of PO.QI. The SEC also approved the 60% stock dividend (P9.0 
million) declaration to stockholders of record as of August 15, 1974. 

The Parent Company granted 10 stockholders of.record as of November 15, 1974 the right ro 
subscribe at par of P0.01 per share to the unissued and unsubscribed portion of the increased capital 
stock amounting to Pl 6.0 million (1 .60 billion shares), at the ratio of 2 shares of stock for every 
three (3) shares of stock registered in the stockholders' name. 

On October 23, 1974, the SEC authorized the listing of the additional 2.50 billion shares of the 
Parent Company's increased capital stock (900.0 ntillion fully paid-up shares representing the 60% 
stock dividend, and with respect to 1.60 billion shares, upon full payment and issuance of 
corresponding stock certificates) in the Manila Stock Exchange, Makati Stock Exchange, Inc. and 
Metropolitan Stock Exchange, Inc. The listing took effect on November 6, I 974. 

d. On February 4, 1976, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from 
1140.0 million (P24.0 million or 60% Class A and Pl 6.0 million or 40% Class B) to 
P 100.0 million (Jl60.0 million or 60% Class A and fl40.0 million or 40% Class B) both with a par 
value ofP0.01 per share. The Parent Company also granted pre-emptive rights to stockholders of 
record as of October 31, 1975 to subscribe at par value of PO.O l per share to P.20.0 million 
(fl 12.0 million Class A and P8.0 million Class 8) at the ratio of one share for every two shares held. 
The right was exercisable on or before January 15, 1976 with a 25% down payment and the balance 
payable upon call by the BOD. 
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On December 22, 1975, the SEC issued to the Parent Company a "Certificate of Permit to Offer 
Securities for Sale" covering the said capital increase of P60.0 million (P36.0 million Class A and 
P24.0 million Class B). On February 26, 1976, the listing of the shares representing the said 
P60.0 million increase in authorized capital stock of the Parent Company in the stock exchanges 
was approved. 

e. On November 13, 2007, the SEC approved the increase in the capital stock of the Parent Company 
for P.500.0 million consisting of the 2.0 billion shares to P2 .50 billion consisting of 10.0 billion 
shares. Pursuant to this increase, 537.5 million shares to the subscribers to the capital increase were 
issued on January 10, 2008. 

f. On May 28, 2009, the Parent Company issued 120,853,182 shares to a new investor, 
ZN Biofuels, Inc., the registration of which was exempt and confirmed as such by the SEC. 

g. On September 22, 2009, the Parent Company issued 31,818, I 82 shares to Shouk Financial Services 
Ltd., the registration of which was exempt and likewise confirmed as such by the SEC. 

h. On September 8, 2011 , the SEC approved the Stock Option Plan of the Parent Company grant ing 
directors, members of the advisory board, officers and employees of the Parent Company options to 
purchase, at the par value of P0.25 per share, a total of 500 million shares. Out of these shares, 26. 7 
million have been paid and listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange on January 21 , 2013 which was 
classified as deposit for future stock subscription as ofDeumber 31, 2012. On July 24 . 2013, the 
PSE approved the listing of the remaining 473 million shares. 

Stock Options Plan CSQP) 
On July 11 , 2007, the Parent Company's BOD and stockholders approved the SOP. On September 8, 
2011, the SEC approved the SOP. 

The basic terms and conditions of the SOP are as follows: 

• The SOP covers up to 500 million in favor of directors, officers and employees of the Parent 
Company. 

• The agreement provides for an exercise price of P0.25 per share. 
• These options will be settled in equity once exercised. 
• All options are exercisable on the third (31'11) year after the approval of the SOP by the stockholders 

which will therefore expire on July 11, 20 I 0. 

On June 18, 20 I 0, the stockholders approved the extension of the exercise period to July 11 , 2013. In 
2013, a total of seventeen directors, and the chairman and a member of the advisory board and certain 
officers of the Parent Company have exercised the stock option plan and subscribed for the total of 
500.0 million shares at the exercise price. Weighted average exercise price amounted to P0.25 per 
share. Out ofthese shares, 26.7 million have been paid and listed in the PSE on January 21, 2013 which 
was classified as deposit for future stock subscription as at December 31, 2012. On July 24, 2013, the 
PSE approved for listing the remaining 473 .0 million shares. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 
117.63 million SOP shares were listed with the PSE. 

Deposir for Future Stock Subscription 
On October 5, 2016, a. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between the Parent Company 
and META. Under the MOA, MET A will subscribe to 435.66 million shares of the Parent Company. 
Earnest money in the amount of Pl 3.94 million was received by the Parent Company through actual 
remittance on October 19, 2016. 
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A subscription agreement was executed by the parties on February 24, 2017, which states that the Pa rent 
Company agrees to issue to MET A and MET A agrees to subscribe to and purchase from the Parent 
Company, 43 .57 million common shares of the Parent Company ate value of P0.32 per share or a total 
subscription price of P J3.94 million. On March 24, 2017, 43 .57 million common shares were issued to 

META. 

Treasury Stock 
The treasury stock represents I 8.0 million shares of the Parent Company costing P3.24 million wh ich 
are held by BGEC as at December 31, 2018 and 20 I 7. 

Non-controlling Interests 
In 2013 , the Parent Company entered into an agreement with Petrosolve SDN BHD (Petrosolve), a 
Malaysian corporation engaged in the business of oil fields services, to incorporate Grand way, in which 
the Parent Company has 70% equity interest. The Parent Company, through Grandway, incorporated 
PT BES to carry out its oil well business in Indonesia. 

On May I 0, 2017, the Parent Company entered into a share purchase agreement with Petrosolve, 
whereby Petrosolve transferred and ceded to the Parent Company its entire shareholdings in Grandway 
for a consideration of HK$3,000, thereby giving the Parent Company l 00% of the shares of Grandwa y 
and 95% of the shares of PT BES. As a result, the Parent Company recognized equity reserve on the 
acquired non-controlling interest amounting to P53.95 million. 

The Group owns 95% equity interest in PT BES in 2018 and 201 7, and owns 72.58% equ ity interest in 

SRJ in 2018 and 2017. 

The summarized financial information of SRJ and PT BES are provided below. This infonnation is 
based on amounts before intercompany eliminations. 

2018 SRI PT BES 
Non-controlling interests 27.42% 5.00% 

Financial Position 
Total current assets P6,067 P655,673 
Total current liabilities 472,438 185,321,520 
Total ca~ital deficienc~ P467~71 1118416651847 

Non-controllini interests Pt281153 P9,233~93 

Financial Performance 
General and administrative expenses 1163,377 P980,848 
Other charges 1116841784 
Net loss 1163,377 Pl216651632 
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interests P17,378 P633,282 

2017 SRJ PT BES 
Non-controlling interests 27.42% 5.00% 

Financial Position 
Total current assets fl6,067 P627,015 
Total current liabilities 410!061 17216271230 
Total caeitaJ deficrenc~ P4031994 Pl 72,000,2 l S 
Non-controllin~ interests P l 10

1
775 P81600101 l 
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Financial Performance 
General and administrative expenses 
Other charges 
Net loss 
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Net loss anributable to·non-controlling interests 

18. Interest Income 

SRJ PT BES 

P56,593 P l,076,777 
1,414,771 

P56 593 P2 491 548 
PIS,518 P124,577 

The source of the Group's interest income for the years ended December 31 , 2018 and 2017 are as 
follows: 

Interest income on: 
Financial assets at FVOCI I 

AFS financial assets - debt 
securities (Note 10) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
(Note 6) 

19. Relat.ed Party Transactions 

2018 

PI,552,472 

518,671 
Pl,071,143 

2017 2016 

P2,197,1 23 P3,008,473 

1,094,941 1,624,783 
PJ,292,064 P4,633,256 

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intennediaries, control or are 
controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies, subsidiaries and 
fellow subsidiaries, are related parties of the Group. Associates and individuals owning, directly or 
indirectly, an interest in the· voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the 
enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Group and close members 
of the family ofthese individuals, and companies associated with these individuals also constitute 
related parties. In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the 
substance of the relationship and not merely the legal fonn . 

Advances from Stockholder 
In 2017, in relation to the MOA executed between the Parent Company and MET A, tbe Parent 
Company has excess cash received from VTE amounting to P6.67 million which will be reimbursed by 
the Parent Company to MET A or will be applied to future subscription of MET A subject to the tenns 
and conditions provided in the MOA. In 2018, the Group and META agreed that the excess cash would 
fonn part as consideration of the shares issued in 2017 (see Note 17). Accordingly, the advances from 
stockholder was closed to "Additional paid-in capital". 

Transactions with Retirement Benefit Fund 
a. The Parent Company's retirement benefit fund is in the form of a trust being maintained by a trustee 

bank. 

b. The carrying amount and fair value of the retirement benefit fund (the Fund) as et December 31 , 
201 8 and 2017 amounted to P22.07 million and '126.23 mill ion, respectively (sec Note 21 ). 
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c. The assets and investments of the retirement benefit fund as at December 3 I , 2018 and 2017 are as 
fo llows: 

Investments in bonds 
Investment in unit investment trust fund 
Investment in stocks 
Special savings deposits 
Accrued payables 
Others 

2018 
P13,440,684 

7,108,781 
l,lS0,680 

277,121 
(19,278) 
116 793 

P22 074,781 

2017 
p 12,934,896 

7,81 7,037 
1,235 ,450 
4, 153 ,154 

(21,992) 
11 5 940 

P26 234,485 

d. In 20 I 8 and 20 I 7, the Parent Company contributed nil and P7 .00 million, respectively. to the 
retirement benefit fund (see Note 21 ) . 

Compensation of Key Management Personnel 
a. Shares of stock of the Parent Company held by members of the BOD aggregated to 125.807,24 7 as 

at December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

b. Compensation of key management personnel consists of short-tenn employee benefits and post­
employment benefits. Short-term employee benefits amounted to Pl 1.96 million, P12.21 million 
and Pl 1.40 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, while, post-employment benefits 
amounted to P3 .58 million, P4.95 million and P4. 73 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Directors ' remuneration consists only of per diems for attendance at the BOD and Committee meetings. 
In 20 18, 2017 and 2016, total per diems received by the members of the BOD amounted to 
fl2. I 5 million, P2.36 million and PI .80 million, respectively. There is no existing compensatory plan or 
arrangement for directors of the Parent Company. 

Remuneration of existing officers of the Group are covered in their employment contracts and, except 
for retirement benefits under the Group's retirement plan, there are no existing compensatory plans or 
arrangements for officers of the Group. 

A SOP for directors and officers covering 500.0 million shares was approved by the stockholders on 
July 11, 2007, and the exercise period was extended to July 2013. The SEC issued on September 8, 
2011 a resolution exempting the SOP from the registration requirements under the Securities Regulation 
Code. As of December 31, 2016, the entire 500.0 million shares were subscribed of which 
117.6 million shares have been pa.id. 

Transactions with Associates 
ln 20 l 8, the Parent Comp8!ly entered in a Management Service Agreement (MSA) with VEPC and 
YrNTER where the Parent Company would render managerial and administrative services to VEPC and 
VINTER. The Parent Company recognized income from this MSA amounting to P2.97 million in 201 8. 
The related receivable amounting to P2.97 million as at December 31, 2018 is presented as part of 
"Accounts receivable" under ~eceivables" account in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial 
position. 
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20. General and Admiaistrativc Expenses 

2018 2017 20 16 
Personnel: 

Salaries and wages 1119,S94,444 Pl9,559,371 fl 18,368, I 57 
Retirement expense (see Note 21) 4,220,882 6,452,891 6,022,191 
Olher employee benefits 4,003,993 5,652,864 5,013 ,012 

Taxes and licenses 6,681,708 1, 132,767 1,204,403 
Depreciation and amortization 

(see Note 14) 5,242,0SO 5,421,968 3,586,93 I 
Transportation and travel 4,515,025 5,336,868 5,243,019 
Representation and entertainment 3,954,140 4,621,892 4,497,613 
Professional fees 2,162,561 1,604,128 1,969,836 
Communication 1,049,180 1,063,243 1,091,396 
Utilities 963,668 915,944 925, 155 
Annual stock.holders meeting 532,958 650,719 599,210 
Office supplies 369,489 524,234 54 1,204 
Trainings and seminars 246,155 257,376 60,092 
Association and membersh ip dues 205,823 187,807 218,850 
Repairs and maintenance 65,980 195,105 181.624 
Others 2,615,439 210781754 21432,304 

P56,423,495 Jl55,655,93 I PS J ,954,997 

21 . Retirement Benefits 

The Group maintains a funded, noncontributory defined retirement benefit plan covering all qualified 
employees. 

The Fund is adminis1ered by a trustee bank under the supervision of the Board of Trustees (BOT) of the 
plan. The BOT is responsible for investment of the assets. It defines the investment strategy as often as 
necessary, at least annually, especially in the case of significant market developments or changes to the 
structure of the plan participants. When defining the investment strategy, it takes account of the plans' 
objectives, benefit obligations and risk capacity. The investment strategy is defined in the form of a 
long-tenn target structure (investment policy). The BOT delegates the implementation of the 
investment. 

RA No. 764 l ("Retirement Pay Law") an Act amending article 287 of Presidential Decree (PD) No. 442 
("Labor Code of the Philippines"), requires a provision for retirement pay to qualified private sector 
employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided, however, that the employee's 
retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other agreements shall not be less than those 
provided under the law. The law does not require minimum funding of the plan. 

The following tables summarize the components of retirement expense recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income, the remeasurement effects recognized in the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income and the amounts recogniz.ed in the consolidated statements of financial position. 
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The components of the retirement expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income are a-; 
fo llows: 

Current service cost 
Net interest cost (income) 

2018 
P4,274,982 

(54,100) 
P4 210,882 

Remeasurement gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income follow: 

Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation 
Return on assets excluding amount included in net 

interest cost 

2018 
Pl,950,932 

(2,538,266) 
(P587,334) 

201 7 
PS,875 ,145 

577,746 
P6 452 891 

2017 
P9,604 ,142 

201,506 
P9,805,648 

Accrued retirement benefits recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position as at 
December 3 J, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets (see Note 19) 

2018 
P29,942,127 
(22,074,781) 
P7,867,346 

201 7 
P29,293 ,975 
(26,234,845) 
P3,059,130 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation follow: 

At January I 
Current service cost 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial loss (gains) due to: 

Changes in financial assumptions 
Changes in demographic assumptions 
Experience adjustments 

At December 31 

Changes in the fair vaJue of plan assets follow: 

At January 1 
Interest income included in net interest cost/income 
Return on assets excluding amount included in net 

interest cost/income 
Contribution 
Benefits paid 
At December 31 

2018 
P29)93,975 

4)74,982 
1,289,098 

(2,964,996) 

(1,940,688) 
3,194 

(13,438) 
P29,942,ll7 

2018 
P26,234,845 

1,343,198 

(2,538,266) 

(2,964,996) 
P22,074,781 

201 7 
P32,38 I ,3 I 0 

5,875,145 
1,505,91 0 
(864,248) 

(4,737,084) 
(661,245) 

(4,205,813) 
P.29,293,975 

2017 
p 18,969,423 

928,164 

201,506 
7,000,000 
(864,248) 

1126,234,845 
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Changes in the accrued retirement benefits recognized in the consolidated statement of financ ial 
position as at December 31 arc as follows : 

At January I 
Retirement expense 
Actuarial loss (gain) recognized for the year 
Contribution 
At December 31 

2018 
P3,059,130 

4,220,882 
587,334 

P7,867,346 

2017 
P1 3,41 l,887 

6,452,891 
(9,805,648) 
(7,000,000) 
P3,059,130 

The major categories and fair values of the Group's plan assets are disclosed in Note 19. 

The principal assumptions used in determin ing the pension liability for the Group's pension plan as at 
December 31 are as follows : 

Discount rate 
Future sa.lary increase rate 

2018 
7.27% 
6.00% 

2017 
5.75% 
6.00% 

The Group expects to contribute P5.25 mill ion to the Fund in 2019. 

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonable possible changes of each 
signi ficant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at end of the financial reporting date, 
assuming all other assumptions were held constant: 

Discount rate 
Increase (decrease) 
+I 00 basis points 
- I 00 basis points 

Future salary increase rate + 100 basis points 
- 100 basis points 

Increase (decrease) in the present 
value of defined benefit obligation 

2018 2017 
{Pl,099,192) (Pl,556,619) 

1,238,424 1,792,326 

1,427,803 
{1,296,867) 

1,942,996 
(1,718,905) 

The Group does not expect.any changes on the other assumptions aside from the above. 

The weighted average duration of the benefit payments as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is 
approximately I 2.00 years and 16.02 years, respectively. 

The average expected future service years at the end of the reporting date is seven (7) years. Shown 
below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of December 31 , 2018: 

One year or Jess 
More than one year to five years 
More than five years to 10 years 
More than I 0 years to 15 years 
More than 15 years to 20 years 
More than 20 years Lo 10 years 
Total expected benefit payments 

2018 
Pl5,658,24S 

8.962,093 
12,174,226 
25,327,576 

9,682,540 
22,079,073 

P93,883,753 

201 7 
Pl 3,749,760 

7,613,679 
10,670,297 
33,741,430 
17,087,248 
41,3 I 0,442 

p 124, 172,856 
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22. Income Taxes 

Current income tax in 201 8, 2017 and 2016 pertains 10 MCIT. Provision for income tax consists of 

Current: 
Final tax 
Income tax 

Deferred 

2018 

P409,192 
216 908 
626,1 00 

3,083,254 
P3,709,354 

201 7 

P648,738 
11,800 

660,538 
8,850,560 

P9151 l,098 

2016 

P922,634 
7 424 

930,058 
2,711,401 

P3,641,459 

Being engaged in petroleum operations in the Philippines, the Parent Company and SRJ are entitled to 
certain tax incentives under PO No. 87, as amended. Under PO No. 87, contractors are exempt from all 
taxes, except income taxes. 

The reconciliation of the tax computed at the statutory tax rate to the provision for income tax as shown 
in the consolidated statements of income follows: 

1018 
Income tax at 30% statutory rate (P6,6l 8,878) 
Adjustments to income tax 

resulting from : 
Nontaxable income (13,673,801) 
Movement in unrecogruud deferred 

income tax assets 13,191,470 
Nondeductible expenses 7,71 2,435 
Derecognition of deferred tax assets 2,399,858 
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 910,421 
Interest income already subjected to 

final tax. (621,343) 
Final taxes paid and others 409,191 

Provision for income tax PJ,709,354 

2017 
(Pl4,619,982) 

( 1,087,786) 

12,380,698 
3,584,724 

10,486,949 

(1 ,491,696) 
258,191 

P9,5 l l,098 

2016 
(P36,245,656) 

(23,032,898) 

63,370,547 
16,809 

(J,389,977) 
922,634 

fl3 ,641 ,459 

The components of net deferred income tax liabilities recognized by the Group as at December 31 , 201 8 
and 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred taxes recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income: 
Deferred income tax assets on: 

Accrued retirement benefits 
MCIT 
Unamortized past service cost 

Deferred income tax liabilities on: 
Revaluation increment on office condominium 
UnreaJized foreign exchange gains 

Deferred income tax liability related to accrued 
retirement benefits recognized as OCI 

2018 

6,749,084 
7,506,416 

750,850 
~15,006J50 

2017 

lil,844,790 
917,845 
624,452 

3,387 087 

7,412,928 
7,146,405 

14,559 333 

927,050 
1!12,099,296 
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As at December 3 l, 2018, the Group has NOLCO and MC!T that can be utilized as deduction from 
future taxable income and income tax due, respectively, as follows: 

As al As at 

December 3 I , December 3 I , 
Year Incurred Elq~i!)'. Year 2017 Additions Ex2ired 2018 
NOLCO 
2015 2018 P485,845 P- P485,845 p 

2016 2019 44,521,585 44 ,521,585 
201 7 2020 41,229,661 41 ,229,661 
2018 2021 36,647,226 36,647,226 

P86,237
1
09 I P361647,226 P4851845 Pl 2213981472 

MCIT 
201 5 2018 P91 0,421 P- P910,421 P-
2016 2019 7,424 7,424 

2017 2020 11 ,800 11 ,800 

2018 2021 216,908 216,908 

P929 645 P216 908 P910 421 P236 132 

As at December 31, 20 l 8 and 2017, the Group has deductible temporary differences and carryforward 
benefits for which no deferred income tax asset was recognized as management expects that it is not 
probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against which deferred income tax asset 
can be utilized. Details are as follows: 

NOLCO 
Allowance for impairment on: 

Deferred exploration costs 
Financial assets at FVOCI I AFS financial assets 
Receivables 

Retirement benefits 
Unamortized past service cost 
MCIT 

23 . Loss per Share 

2018 2017 
11122,398,472 P86,23 7 ,091 

212,847,052 209,900,428 
3,SS0,935 3,550,935 
2,142,006 2,732,947 

10,370,182 
1,850,228 

236,132 11,800 

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computation: 

2018 2017 2016 

Net loss attributable to shareholders of the 
Parent Company (a) P25,121 ,622 P58,104,275 fl75,648 ,092 

Weighted average number of outstanding 
common shares (b) 2174010791047 2159217921915 2156011181512 

Basic and diluted loss 
~share ~a/bl P0.009 P0.022 P0.030 

There have been no other transactions involving common shares or potential common shares between 
the end of financial reporting period and the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements. 
There are no potential dilutive shares as of December 31 , 2018, 2017 and 2016. 
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24 . Segment Information 

The primary segment reporting format is determined to be divided into business segments for which the 
Group's risk and rate of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products produced. The 
operating bus inesses are organized and managed separately through the Parent Company and its 
subsid iaries according to the nature of the products provided, with each segment representing a strategic 
business unit that offers different products to different markers. 

As at December JI , 201 8 and 2017, the Group has two main business segments - investment holding 
and renewable energy and natural gas exploration. 

The Group's operating business segments remain to be neither organized nor managed by geographical 
segment. 

The following table presents certain segment results, assets and liability information regarding the 
Group's business segments: 

2018 
Renewable 

Energy and 
Investment Natural Gas 

Holding Exeloratlon Eliminations Consolidated 
Financial Performance 
Income (Loss) before interest and 

taxes P18,888,398 (1239,606,671) P- (Pl0,718,273} 
Interest income 2,071,143 2,071 ,143 
Interest expense (3,415,799) (3,415,799) 
Provision for income tax Q1709~S4} Q1709,3S42 

Net income ~lossl PIB,888~98 ~441660168tl P- ~25! 772i:_83l 
Financial Position 
Segment assets P202,482,107 P88S.211,373 (P460,234,384) P627,459,096 

Investment E!ro2erties 13911872942 2Iz691 10S8 16028791000 
Total assets P34J1670.049 P906~90l143I ~60a•~84l P788~381096 
Total liabilities P230~4S14Sl P267199t1780 ~15~631750~ P8219731482 

Other Segment .Information 
Additions to: 

Deferred exploration costs IL Pl 1,330,887 P- Pl 1,330,887 
Property and equipment 179,098 179,098 

Depreciation and amortization 5,242,050 S,242,0SO 

2017 
Renewable 
Energy and 

Investment Natural Gas 
Holding Exeloration Eliminatio.ns Consolidated 

Financial Performance 
Loss before interest and taxes {P570,024) (P51 ,0I0,520) P- (PSl ,580,544) 
Interest income 3,292,064 3,292,064 
Interest expense (444,792) (444,792) 
Provision for income tax {9 .5111098} {9.511.098} 
Net loss Q'.!570~024l ~P57~674,34 62 P- ~58.2441370~ 
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20 17 
Renewable 
Energy and 

Investment Natural Gas 
Hold ins Ex2loration Eliminations Consolidated 

Finanrln l Posltlon 
Segment assets p 191 ,291,51 2 P740, 792,432 (P455,2 I I ,806) P476,872,138 
Investment 2ropenies 11918191824 15515601681 275.3801505 
Total assets P3 11 11l11336 P89613531I 13 ~P45512 l I ,806l P752

1
2521643 

Total liabilities P21816161154 P27211041964 '-!!41110111436l P791709,682 
Other Segment Information 
Additions to: 

Deferred exploration costs P- P29,873,551 P- P29,873,55 1 
Property and equipment J,249,645 3,249,645 

Depreciation and amortization 5,421 ,968 5,421,968 

2016 
Renewable 
Energy end 

Investment Natural Gas 
Holding Ex21oration Eliminations Consolidated 

Financial Performance 
Earnings (loss) before interest 

and taxes P42,847,5 12 (Pl68,299,621) P- (P12S,452, 109) 
lnterest income 4,633,256 4,633,256 
Provision for income tax P 16411459) {3164 1.459} 
Net income ~lossl P4218471512 il:l 6713071824l P- ~124146013 1 2~ 
Financial Position 
Segment assets P l89,419,271 P694,574,572 (P43 8,332,416) P445,66 J ,427 
Investment pro~nies 119.8 19.824 1551560168 1 275.380.505 
Total assets P30912391095 P8501135~53 ~3813321416l P721 104 1,932 

Total liabilities P21612751464 Pl941187
1
478 ~388163 11654l P2 l ,83 l 1288 

Other Segment Information 
Additions to: 

Deferred exploration costs P- P29,933,862 P- P29,933,862 
Property and equipment 180,029 180,029 

Depreciation and amortization 3,586,931 3,586,931 

25. Chang-es in Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities 

2018 
Application At 

At January 1 Cash nows to APIC December 31 
Dividends payable P888,714 P- P- P888,714 
Loan payable (see Note 17) 50,000,000 50,000,000 
Advances from stockholder (sec 

Note 19) 6,670,782 (6,670,782) 
Interest ~ayable {3141517,9} 
Net income ~ossl '5715591496 i?3.41S1799l !!6.670178ll PS0188817 l 4 
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Dividends payable 
Loan payable (see Note 17) 
Advances from stockholder (see Note 19) 
Interest payable 
Net mcome (loss) 

26. Fair Value Measurements 

Fair Value 
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2017 

At January I 
P888,714 

P888,714 

Cash flows 
P-

50, 000, 000 
6,670,782 
(444,792) 

At 
December 31 

P888,714 
50,000,000 
6,670,782 

P57,559,496 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair values are obtained 
from quoted market prices. 

The followi ng methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments, investment properties and office condominium for which it is practicable to estimate such 
value: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Refundable Deposits, Accounts Payable and Accrued 
Expenses, Loan Payable, Advances from Stockholder and Dividends Payable. Due to the short-term 
nature of these accounts, their carrying values were assessed to approximate their fair values. 

Financial Assets at FVOCI I AFS Financial Assets. Financial assets at FVOCI I AFS financial assets in 
quoted equity instruments and quoted debt instruments are carried in the consolidated statement of 
financial position at fair value, which is determined by reference to quoted market prices at the close of 
business on the reporting date. 

Investment Properties and Office Condominium. Investment properties are carried in the consolidated 
statements of financial position at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
The following table presents the level of hierarchy of the Group's financial assets at FVOCI debt and 
equity instruments, investment properties and office condominium as at December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

F!nnncial assets at FVOCI: 
Quoted debt securities 
Quoted equity securities 

Investment properties 
Office condominium 

Date ofvaluatlon 

December 31, 2018 
December 31, 2018 

Various dates in 2018 
Aur ust :Z.5, 2016 

2018 
Fa ir Value Measurement Uaiag 

Quoted prices Slinlfiunt 
in active observable 
markets input& 

Total (Level J) (Level 2) 

1137,624,594 
6,711,913 

160,879,000 
23,302,327 

113 7,624,594 
6,711,923 

P-

23,301.Jl? 

Si&nificant 
unobserv1 bit 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

160,879,000 
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AFS Financial assets: 
Quoted debt securities 
Quoted equity securities 

Investment properties 
Office condominium 

Date of valuation 

December 3 I , 20 17 
December 31 , 20 17 

June 25, 2016 
August 25, 2016 
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2017 
Fair Value Measurement Using 

Quoted prices Significant 
in active observable 
markets inputs 

Total (Level I) (Level 2) 

P39,839,205 
6,211 ,923 

275,380,505 
25,593,527 

P39,839,205 
6,211,923 

25,593.527 

Significant 
unobservable 

input:. 
(Level J) 

275,380,505 

Fair value of quoted debt and equity securities financial assets at FVOCI is derived from quoted market 
prices in active markets. 

During the reporting years ended December 31, 20 l 8 and 2017, there were no transfers between Level I 
and Level 2 fair value meas1,1TCments and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. 

There are no financial I iabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 20 I 8 and 2017. 

Valuation Techniques Used to Derive Level 3 Fair Values 
The table below presents the following for each class of the Group's investment properties and office 
condominium: 

The fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period; 

The level of the fair value hierarchy (e.g., Level 2 or Level 3) within which the fair value 
measurements are categorized in their entirety; 

A description of the valuation techniques applied; 

The inputs used in the fair value measurement; and 

For Level 3 fair value measurements, quantitative infonnation about the significant unobservable 
inputs used in the fair value measurement. 

CluJ of Property 
Land 

Office ~ndominium 

fair Value aJ at 
Decfmber 31, 

2018 
P160,879,000 

13,301,327 

2018 

Valuation 
TechJ1ique 

Market 
Approach 

Market 
Approach 

Key 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Price per 

1qunt meter 
External {actor 

(adjustment to th' 
prkt per squut 

meter) 
Location 

Siu 

Prke per 
square mrter 

Rem1inlng 
economic life 

IUnge 
(Weighted 

Average) 
Pl()...411,000 

- t5•t. lo 59/o 
-20 to 5% 

P70,000-
Pl14,000 

14-40 yens 



Class of Property 

Land 

Office condominium 

Fair Value as at 
December 3 1, 2017 

P275,380,505 

25,593,527 
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2017 

Valuation 
Technique 

Market 

Key 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
Price per 

Approach square meter 
External factor 

(adjustment to the 
price per square 

meter) 
Loastion 

Size 

Mark et Pri cc pc r 
Approach square meter 

Remaining economic 
life 

Range 
(Weighted 

Average) 
P20-PJ.700 

-So/. to -10°•0 

10%to 20% 
-S"'• 

P70,000-
Pl 14,000 

14-40 )'CBrS 

Sensit ivity Analysis to Significant Changes in Unobservable Inputs within Level 3 of the Hierarchy 

Investment Properties. Significant increases (decreases) in price per square meter in isolation would result 
in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement. 

27. Financial Risk ~n.gement Objectives and Policies 

The Group's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, refundable 
deposits, financial assets at FVOCI, accounts payables and accrued expenses, loan payable, advances 
from stockholder and dividends payable. Cash and cash equivalents, refundable deposits, financial 
assets at FVOCI, loan payable and advances from stock.bolder are used for invesbnent purposes, while 
receivables, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and dividends payable arise from operations. The 
Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk. credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risk as at December J 1, 2018 
and 2017. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on minimizing the potential adverse 
effects on the Group's financial perfonnance due to unpredictability of financial markets. 

The Group's exposures to these risks are managed through close monitoring by the Group's key 
management and BOD through the Finance and Investments Comminee. 

Foreign Currency Risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. 
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign cWTCocy exchange rates 
on its financial statements. Fluctuations in exchange rates can have significant effects on the Group's 
reported results. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its foreign-currency­
denominated cash and cash equivalents, refundable deposits and financial assets at FVOCI accounts. 
The Group's policy is to minimize economic and material transactional exposures arising from currency 
movements against the Philippine Peso. 

The Group' s foreign-currency-denominated exposures comprise significantly of its exposure in its US$, 
Indonesian Rupiah (IDR) and Japanese Yen (JP¥) financial assets. 

111111111111 II ffil~ 



- 57 -

The Group' s significant fore ign-currency-denominated financial assets as at December JI , 20 18 and 
20 I 7 are as follows: 

2018 2017 
Original Peso Original Peso 

Currencl'. Eguivalent Currcnc}:'. Equivalent 
Loans and Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents: 

USS USS694,876 P36,S36,S80 USS358,145 Pl 7,882, I 80 
IDR IDR47,160,602 169,778 I DRJ 6,6 77 ,892 135,518 

Refundable deposits: 
USS USS- US$2,621,87 I 133,284,475 
JP¥ JP~34,063,800 16,183,711 JP¥84,063,800 38,1 44 ,633 

Financial Assets at FVOCI and 
AFS Financial Assets 

Quoted egui~ investments - USS USS3JOO 168JS6 USS3JOO 159.776 
PS310S8~2S p 189,606,582 

For purposes of translating the foreign-currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities as of 
December 31, the exchange rates applied were as follows : 

USS 
LDR 
JP¥ 

2018 
PS2.S8 to USSl 

P0.0036 to IDRl 
P0.4751 to JP¥1 

2017 
fi.19.93 to US$! 

P0.0037 to IDRI 
P0.4538 to JP¥! 

The following table summarizes the impact on the consolidated financial statements of reasonable 
possible changes in the exchange rates of foreign currencies against the Philippine Peso as at 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 until the Group's next financial reporting dat.e: 

Increase 
I ncrcasc (decrease) Increase (decrease) (decrease) an 

Chlltlge In in income before Change in in income before Change in income before 
USS r1tc income we JPV rate income tax IDR rate income ta>. 

2018 +1.12% ILCll ,094 +I.76•;. Pl84,833 +1.75% Pl.971 
- 1.32% (484,504) -1.34'/o (216,862) -1.60% (2,716) 

2017 +l.28% Pl,936,978 +2.n% Pl ,048,977 +1.57% frZ, 128 
-2.SS':O (3,858,824) -3.04% (l, IS9,S97) -1.72% (2,331 ) 

There is no other effect on the Group's equity other than those already affecting the consolidated loss 
before income tax. 

Price Risk 
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group, 
which are classified on the consolidated statements of financial position as financial assets at FVOCI. 
The Group employs the service ofa third-party stock broker to manage its investment in shares of stock. 
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The following table presents the effect on the consolidated fin ancial statements of reasonable porn bit· 
changes in market prices of financial assets at FVOCI as of December 31, 201 8 end 2017 unt il the 
Group's next financial reporting date: 

Change in 
Quoted Prices of Increase 

Investments (Decrease) 
Carried at Fair Value in Egui!:}'. 

2018 + 4.00% Jll,773,461 
- 4.00% (1,773 ,461 ) 

2017 + 4.45% P2,049,935 
- 4.45% (2,049,93 S) 

The effect on the Group's equity in relation to equity price risk already excludes the effect of the 
transactions affecting profit or loss. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its counterparties failed to discharge their 
contractual obligations. The Group manages end controls credit risk by doing business only with 
recognized, creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the 
result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significanl The Group does not have any collateral 
held as security and other credit enhancements on its financial assets as of December 31 , 2018 and 2017. 
Therefore, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of its financial 
assets as al December 31, 2018 and 20 l 7. 

It is the Group's policy to maintain the receivables at a low level except for one-time non-trade 
transaction which the Group classifies as collectible or not impaired because the parties have no history 
of default especially on transactions as agreed on the contract. 

The following table provides information regarding the credit quality by class offinancial assets 
(amounts gross of allowance for credit losses) based on the Group's credit rating system: 

Loans and Receivables 
Cash and cash equivaJents• 
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Advances to officers and 

employees 
Refundable deposits 

Flnanc.llll ASJets at FVOCf 
Quoted debt securities 
Quoted equity investments 

Neither 
P·a.st Due nor 

Impaired 

P42,090,286 

ll7,l21,l26 
200,262 

51,369 
16,183,711 

185,646,854 

37,624,594 
6,711,923 

44,336,517 
P229,983,371 

2018 

Past Due 
and Impaired 

P-

2,142,006 

2,142,006 

3,550,935 
3,550,935 

P5,692,941 

Total 

P42,090,286 

129,263,232 
200,262 

51 ,369 
16,183,711 

187, 788,860 

37,624,594 
10,262,858 
47,887,452 

P23S,676,312 
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Loans and Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents• 
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable 
Interest receivable 
Advances to officers and 

Employees 
Refundable dceosits 

AFS Financial Assets 
Quoted debt securities 
Quoted eguHy investments 

•Excluding auh on hand. 
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Neither 
Past Due nor 

Impaired 
(High Grade) 

P75,027,407 

1,980,784 
356,573 

349,665 
171,429,108 
249 143 537 

39,839,205 
6,211,923 

46 051 128 
P295 194 665 

2017 

Past Due 
and Impaired 

P-

2,732,947 

2 732 947 

3,550,935 
3 550 935 

P6 283,882 

Total 

P75,027,407 

4,713,731 
356,573 

349,665 
171,429,108 
251 876 484 

39,839,205 
9,7621858 

49 602 063 
P301 478 547 

The credit quality of the financial assets was derennined as follows : 

Financial instruments classified as "high grade" are those cash and cash equivalents transacted witl1 
reputable local and multi-national banks and receivables with some history of default on the agreed 
terms of the contract Financial assets at FVOCI are considered "high grade" since these are invested in 
blue chip shares of stock. The past due and impaired receivables amounted to P2 .73 million as of 
December 31, 2017. 

Concentrations of credit risk arise from financial instruments that have similar characteristics and are 
affected similarly by changes in economic or other conditions. There are no significant concentrations 
of credit risk within the Group arising from financial assets since these are not directly affected by 
changes in economic or other external conditions. 

Applicable for the Year Ended December 31, 2018 

The Group has the following financial assets that are subject to the ECL model: 

General Approach 

• 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. As of December 31 , 2018, the ECL relating to the cash and ~ash 
equivalents of the Group is minimal as these are deposited in reputable entities which have good 
bank standing and is considered to have lower credit risk. 

Financial Assers at FVOCI. Consisting of quoted debt and equity securities, probability of default 
is expected to be lower as these are blue chip shares of stock. 

Refundable Deposit. Refundable deposit is deposited with a third party which have good credit 
standing and are considered to have lower credit risk. hence, probability of default is expected to be 
Jess likely. 
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Simplified Approach 

Receivables. The Group applied the simplified approach under PFRS 9, using a 'provision matn ', 
in measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for receivables. The expected loss 
rates are based on the payment profiles of revenues/sales over a period of at least 24 months before 
the relevant reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this 
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on 
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers/counterparties to settle the receivables. 
The Group has identified the Gross Domestic Product and inflation rate to be the most relevant 
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors 

As of December 31, 20 I 8, the allowance for impairment losses pertain only to individually impaired 
accounts amounting to ¥2.14 million. 

The table below shows the financial assets per stage of allocation and by credit risk rating grades as at 
December 31, 2018: 

Stage l Stage 2 Stage 3 
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total 

High grade Pl02,610,514 P251 ,631 fL Pl 02,862,145 
Standard grade 127,121,226 127,121,226 
Default 2 142 006 2142006 
Gross carrying amount I 02,610,514 127,372,857 2,142,006 232,125,377 
Loss allowance (211421006} ~211421006} 
Carryin& amount P1021610,514 P12713721857 fL P22919831371 

Liquidity Risk . 
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group would not be able to settle or meet its obligations on 
time or at a reasonable price. Management is responsible for liquidity, funding, as well, as settlement 
management. Management also ensures that the Group will maximize its gain on trading of marketable 
securities to tin.ance future capital-intensive projects. The Group manages its liquidity risk on a 
consolidated basis based on business needs, tax, capital or regulatory considerations, if applicable, 
through numerous sources of finance in order to maintain flexibility. 

The Group manages its liquidity profile w be able to finance its working capital requirements and 
capital expenditures and service due and maturing debts. To cover its financing requirements, the 
Group intends to use intemaJly generated funds. The BOD closely moniwrs the Group's financial 
position during its regular meetings. 
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial instruments of the Group based on 
remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows: 

2018 
Mort than 

Ltss than 3 months up More than 
On dtmaod 3 months to one rur one ;r:ear Tola I 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash cquivelenu P42,o93,952 IL IL IL P42,093,9S2 
Receivables: 

Accounts rcecivable 127,121.226 127,121,126 
I ntcrest recei vablc 200,262 200,262 
Advances to officers and employees 51,369 SI,369 

Refundable deposits 16,183,711 16,183,711 
Financial assets at FVOCI «~36~17 44236151 7 

22917861775 l00d62 229.987,037 
Financial Liabilities 
Accounts payable and 

accrued expenses• 8,329,199 8,329,299 
Loan payable 50,343,750 50,.343,750 
Dividends j!8}:'.eble 8881714 8881714 

8881714 5816731049 59~61.763 
Net Financial Assets ~abiUtJesi P2l81898,061 ~P58i! 72, 78:zl II- II- Pl 701425,l 74 
• Excluding 8/aTlllory lialilllties. 

201 7 
More than 

Less lhan J months up More than 
On demand 3 monrhs 10 one tear one }:'.ear Total 

Financial Auet.s 
Cash and cash equivalents P75,029,384 P- P- P- P75,029.384 
Rccc:ivebles: 

Accounts receivable 1,980,784 1,980,784 
Interest receivable 356,573 356,573 
Advances to officers end employees 349,664 349.664 

Refundable deposits 171.429, 108 171,429.108 
AFS financial assets 46 051 128 46 051 128 

294 840 068 356 573 295 196 641 
Financial Ljabilitie.s 
Accoun1S payable and 

accrued expenses• 6,478,048 6,478,048 
Loan payable 50,218,750 50,2 18, 750 
Advences &om stoclcholder 6,670,782 6,670,782 
Dividends !!!!l!ble 8881714 8881714 

7 559 496 56 696 798 64 256 294 
Net Financial Asffts ~bllitlesl i'287 &!801572 ~5~0.225l fL P- P23019401347 
• E:xc/udrng stalUIOry /fabi/itiu 

28. Ca pital Mana~ement 

The objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in 
order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic 
conditions. To maint.ain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares. No changes 
were made on the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 201 7. 
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Management of working capital focuses on short-tenn decisions relating to cash and cash equivalents 
and other current assets and liabilities. The goal of working capital management is to ensure that the 
Group is able to continue its business operations and that it has sufficient funds to satisfy maturing 
current liabilities and operating expenses. 

The table below summarizes the total capital considered by the Group: 

Capital stock 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings (deficit) 

2018 
P703,848,178 

42,021,502 
(15,810,751) 

P730,0S8,929 

2017 
P677, 125, 178 

35,617,951 
7,761,901 

P720,505,030 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. 

111111111111 ~ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
0 SUPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULES 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Basic Energy Corporation 
7th Floor, Basic Petroleum Building 
C. Palanca Jr. Street, Legaspi Village 
Makati City 

Tel (632) 891 0307 
FIX (632) 8Hl 0872 
eycomtph 

BOA/PRC Reg No 0001 
October ~ 2018, valid until August 2•. 2021 

SEC Accredltetlon No 0012-FR·S (Group A) 
November 6, 2018. valid unOI November S , 2021 

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Audit ing, the consolidated financial 
sUltements of Basic Energy Corporat ion and its subs idiaries (the Group) as at December 31, 2018 and 
2017 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, included in this Fonn I 7-A, 
and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2019. Our audits were made for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on the basic financial sUltements taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules arc the responsibility of the 
Group's management. These schedules a.re presented for purposes of complying with Securities 
Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011 ), and are not part of the basic financiaJ statements. These 
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
tatements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information required to be set forth 

therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

SYCIP GORRES VELA YO & CO. 

Leovina Mae V. Chu 
Partner 
CPA Certificate No. 99910 
SEC Accreditation No. 1712-A (Group A), 

October 18, 2018, valid until October 17, 2021 
Tax Identification No. 209-316-91 l 
BIR Accreditation No. 08-00J.998-96-2018, 

February 2, 2018, valid until February l , 2021 
PTR No. 7332629, January 3, 2019, Makati City 

March 28, 2019 
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I DEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
UPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULES 

chedule I 
Schedule II 

Schedule III 

Schedule TV 
Schedule V 

Supplementary schedules required by Annex 68-E 
Reconciliatio_n of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 

(Part I, 4C; Annex 68-C) 
Map of the relationships of the companies within the group (for investments 

houses that are part of a conglomerate; Part I, 4H) 
Schedule of all effective standards end interpretation (Part I, 4J) 
Schedule showing financial soundness indicators 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SUPPLEMENTARYSCHEDULESUNDERANNEX6~E 

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule A. Financial Assets 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

Description Beginning balances Disposals at cost 
Quoted debt securities P39,839,205 
Quoted equity investments 6,2 11 ,923 

P46,05I!128 

Increase (decrease) 
Additions at cost in fair value, net 

P- (P2,214,61 I) 
500,000 

P- (P l,714,611) 

Ending balances 
P37,624,594 

6,711,923 
P44,336,5 l 7 

CHE DULE I 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E 
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule B. Amounts Receinble from Directon, Officen1, Employees, and Principal Stockholden (Other than Related Parties) 

Name and 
· designation of Beginning 'Amounts Amounts 

debtor balances Additions collected written off Current Not current 
Advances to 

Officers and 
Employees P349,664 Pl , 108,03 1 Pl ,406,326 PSJ,369 

Ending balances 

PS 1,369 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND UBSIDIARIES 
SUPPLEMENTARYSCHEDULESUNDERANNEX6~E 

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the Consolidation or Financial Statements 

Name and 
designation of Beginning Amounts Amounts"written 
debtor balances Additions collected off Current Not current 
BRJ P- P54,718 P- P- P.54,718 P-
BDIHJ 22,007,066 108,254 22, 115,320 
BBC 6,029,576 98,063 6 ,127,639 
iBasic 4, 120,420 142,081 4,262,501 
BGEC 4,718 4,718 
SRI 365,060 62,877 427,937 
Grand way 191,546,824 12,355,221 203,902,045 

Ending balances 
P54,718 

22,115,320 
6, 127,639 
4,262,501 

4,718 
427,93 7 

203,902,045 



SUPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E 
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule D. Intangible Assel3 - Other Noncurrent Assets 

Charged to cost and 
Descrietion Beginning balance Additions at cost expenses 
Goodwill PJ,757,602 P- P-
Accounting software 206,700 28,000 (22,37 1) 
Non-propriety club 

shares 200 000 
Total P4, l64,302 P28,000 ~P22z37 1 l 

Other charges 
Charged to other additions 

accounts {deductionsi Ending balance 
P- (P3,757,602) p..... 

2 12,329 

200,000 
P- ~PJ 1757,602l P412,329 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SUPPLEMENTARYSCHEDULESUNDERANNEX6~E 

PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule E. Long-term Debt 

Amount shown under caption 'Current Amount shown under caption 'Long 
po~ition of long term debt' in related Tenn Debt' in related statement of 

Title of issue and type of obligation Amount authorized by indenture statement of financial position financial position 
- Not applicable -



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARJES 
SUPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E 
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011} 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies) 

Name of related party Balance at beginning of period 
- Not applicable -

Balance at end of period 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SUPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E 
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers 

Name of issuing entity of 
securities gllaranteed by the 
Group for which this statement 
is filed 

Title of issue of each class of Total amount guaranteed and Amount owned by a person for 
securities guaranteed outstanding which statement is filed 

- Not applicable -
Nature of guarantee 



ASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SUPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-E 
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER31 , 2018 

Schedule R. Capital Stock 

Title of issue 
Common shares 

Number of shares 
authorized 

l 0,000,000,000 

Number of shares 
issued and 

outstanding as Number of shares 
shown under related reserved for options, 

financial condition warrants, conversion 
caption and other rights 

2,708,500,714 
Employees 

No of shares held by 

Directors 
and Officers 
144,292,842 

Others 
2,025,000 



CHED LE II 

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
UPPLEMENT ARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS 

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION (Part 1, 4C; Annex 68-C) 
DECEMBER31, 2018 

Items 

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, Beginning 

Adjustments 
Fair value adjustment on investment propert ies 
Deferred income tax assets 

Deficiti as Adjusted, Beginning 

et Loss Based on !he Face of AFS 

Less: Non-actutUUnreallud Income Net of Tax 
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture 
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those attributable to 

Cash and Cash Equivalents) 
Unrealized actuarial gain 
Fair value adjustment (M2M gains) 
Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to gain 
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP-gain 
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a 

result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS 
Deferred income tax assets that reduced the amount of provision for 

income tax 

Add: Non-actual Losses 
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) 
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - loss 
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property {after tax) 

Net Loss Aclual/Realiud 

Add (Less) 
Dividend declarations during the period 

Appropr iations of Retained Earnings during the period 
Reversals of appropriations 
Effects of prior period adjustments 
Treasury shares 

TOTAL DEFIClT 

Amount 

Jl7,761 ,90 1 

(71 ,955,696) 
(3,387,087) 

(67 ,580,882) 

(25,772,283) 

809,898 

24,184,059 

1,548,970 

(49,217,270) 

{3,240,000) 

(P120,038,152) 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIPS OF THE COMP ANTES 
WITHIN THE GROUP (PART 1, 4H) 

BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION 

• tnvestments in Subsidiaries 
• tnvestments in Associate 

CHEDULE llJ 



BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS 

AND INTERPRETATIONS (PART 1, 4J) 
A OF DECEMBER 31, 2018 

rnr-· 
~ 

.. \ ~ . 
' . 
~;,~ir. 

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 

PFRS I First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards 

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment 

Amendments to PFRS 2, Classification and 
Measurement of Share-based Payment 
Transactions 

PFRS 3 Business Combinations 

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 

Amendments to PFRS 4, Applying PFRS 9 
Financial lnsttumenu with PFRS 4 Insurance 
Contracts 

PFRS 5 Non-cWTCnt Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations 

PFRS 6 Exploration for and EvaJuation of Mineral 
Resources 

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

PFRS 8 Operating Segments 

PFRS 9 FinanciaJ Instruments 

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 

PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

J 

./ 

./ 

./ 

J 

.j 

./ 

J 

J 

.J 

J 

Philippine Accounting Standards 

PAS I Presentatfon of FinanciaJ Statements ./ 

PAS2 Inventories 

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows ./ 

PAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in AccolDlting 
./ Estimates and Errors 

PAS 10 Events after the ~eporting Period J 

CHEDULE IV 
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PAS 16 Propeny, Plant and Equipment ../ 

PAS! ? Leases .j 
----· 

PAS 19 Employee Benefits .j I 
~ 

PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and J 
Disclosure of Government Assistance 

I PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange 
../ I Rates 

PAS 23 Borrowing Costs ./ 
~ 

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures ./ 

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit ./ Plans 

PAS27 Separate Financial Statements J 

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures ./ 

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate 
or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual ./ 
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 • 2016 Cycle) 

PAS29 Financial Reporting in Hypcrinflationary ./ Economies 

PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation .j 
i 

IPAS 33 Earnings per Share ./ 
I 

PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting ./ 

PAS 36 Impairment of Assets ./ 

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent I 

Assets 
.j I 

j 

PAS 38 Intangible Asseu ./ 

PAS39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and .j 
Measurement 

PAS40 Investment Propeny ./ 

Amendments to PAS 40, Transfers oflnvesanent .j 
Propeny 

PAS41 Agriculture .j 

Philippine Interpretations 

' Philippine Changes lo Existing De¢ommissiooing, 
Interpretation Restoration anti Similar Liabilities ./ 
IFRIC-1 

Philippine Members' Shares in Co-opera1ive Entities and I Interpretat ion Similar Instruments .j 
IFRIC-2 



Determining whether an Arrangement contains a 
Lease ./ 

Philippine Rights to Interests arising from 
Interpretation Decommissioning, Restoration and ./ 
IFRIC-5 Environmental Rehabilitation Funds 

Philippine Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific 
Interpretation Market-Waste Electrical and Electronic ./ 
IFRJC-6 Equipment 

--, 
Philippine Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 
I merpretarion 29 Financial Reponing in Hyperinflationary J 
TFRJC-7 Economies 

Philippine Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 
Interpretation 
IFRJC-10 

~ 
Philippine Service Concession Arrangements 
lnterprerarion ./ 
IFRJC-12 

Philippine PAS 19-The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 
Interpretation Minimum Funding Requirements and their J 
IFRJC-14 Interaction 

Philippine Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign 
lnt.erpretation Operation 
IFRJC-16 

Philippine Distributions ofNon-cash Assets to Owners 
Interpretation ./ 
IFRJC-17 

Philippine Extinguishing Financia.I Liabilities with Equity 
Interpretation Instruments ./ 
IFRJC-19 

Philippine Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a 
Interpretation Surface Mine ./ 
IFRIC-20 

Philippine Levies 
Interpretation 
IFRJC-21 

Philippine Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 
Interpretation Consideration 
IFRJC-22 

Philippine Introduction of the Euro 
Interpretation ./ 
SIC-7 

Philippine Government Assistance-No Specific Relation to 
Interpretation Operating Activities ./ 
SIC-10 
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Philippine Operating Leases-Incentives 
Interpretation ./ 
SIC-1 5 ,___ __ . 
Philippine Income Taxes-Changes in the Tnx Status of an 
Interpretation Entjty or its Shareholders ./ 
SIC-25 -- -
Philippine Evaluating the Substance of Transactions 
Interpretation Involving the Legal Form of a Lease ./ 
SIC-27 

Philippine Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures 
Interpretation ./ 
SIC-29 

Philippine Intangible Assets-Web Site Costs 
Interpretation ./ 
SIC-32 

Note: Standards and interpretation! tagged as "Not Applicable" are those standards and interpretations which were 
adopted but the entity has no significant covered transaction as at and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. 
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BASIC ENERGY CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS 
PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011) 
DECEMBER 31, 2018 

2018 
Profitability ratios: 

Return on assets (0.00%) 
Return on equity (0.00%) 
Net profit margin 0% 

Solvency and liquidity ratios: 
Current ratio 3.30:1 
Debt to equity ratio 0.12:1 
Quick ratio 2.82:1 

Asset to equity ratio 1.12:1 

2017 

(0.00%) 
(0.00%) 

0% 

4.51-1 
0. 11 ·1 
4:30·1 

1.1 1; I 


